
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

REVISED 
AGENDA 

 

Winnebago County Courthouse 
400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 

County Board Room, 8th Floor  
 

Thursday, September 30, 2021 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ..................................... Board Member Jaime Salgado 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentations – None  
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – Yes 
E. Proclamations – “Mental Illness Awareness Week” Presented to Danielle Angileri, NAMI 

Northern Illinois  
 

6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Approval of August 19 and 26, 2021 minutes  
B. Layover of September 9, 2021 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report  

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. Pecatonica Cemetery Association, Compensation:  N/A 

1. Elizabeth (Betsy) Doty (Reappointment), Pecatonica, Illinois, November 2020 – 
November 2026 

B. Rockford Hebrew Cemetery Association, Compensation:  N/A 
1. David Sklar (Reappointment), Loves Park, Illinois, October 2020 – October 2026 
2. Dr. Stephen Geller (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, October 2021 – October 2027 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

3. Steven Lirtzman (New Appointment), Belvidere, Illinois, December 2020 – December 
2026 

4. Goldie Pekarsy (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, December 2020 – December 
2026 

5. Terry Gordon (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, December 2020 – December 2026 
 
9. Reports of Standing Committees ................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee ................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation (Diana Wisocki, as Administrator of the 

Estate of Inga Pearson, deceased v. Winnebago County, d/b/a River Bluff Nursing 
Home et al.) 

3. Resolution to Approve Gigabit to the Desktop Project Tech Engineering (ARP) 
4. Resolution Awarding Purchase of Police Patrol Vehicles and Related Equipment (ARP) 
5. Resolution Awarding Bid for Exterior Maintenance Repair Work for Veterans Memorial 

Hall (CIP) 
6. Approval of Budget Ordinance Coroner for Fiscal Year 2022 to be Laid Over 
7. Approval of Budget Ordinance General Fund Revenue for Fiscal Year 2022 to be Laid 

Over 
8. Approval of Budget Ordinance Memorial Hall for Fiscal Year 2022 to be Laid Over 
9. Approval of Budget Ordinance Point Click Care for Fiscal Year 2022 to be Laid Over 

10. Approval of Budget Ordinance States Attorney for Fiscal Year 2022 to be Laid Over 
11. Approval of Budget Ordinance Motor Fuel Tax and Federal Aid Match Funds to be Laid 

Over 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Z-05-21 A map amendment to rezone +/- 4.28 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District and the RR, Rural Residential District (a sub-district of the RA District) to the 
RE, Rural Estate District (a sub-district of the RA District) for the property that is 
commonly known as 7135 Flora Road, Rockford, IL 61101 in Winnebago Township, 
District 1, to be laid over. 

2. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report   

 
D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Establishing the County Holiday Schedule for 2022     
3. Resolution for the Emergency Purchase of a Food Steamer for River Bluff Nursing Home     
4. Resolution Awarding Bid for Veterans Memorial Hall Access and Accessibility  
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

2. (21-030) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for Resurfacing Patterson Road and 
Pepper Street North of IL Rte. 75 in Durand Township (Section 21-03000-01-GM) 
(No Cost to the County)    C.B. District:  2 
Cost:  $121,239.18 (Durand Township & Village) 

3. (21-031) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for 2021 LED Street Light Fixture 
Upgrade (Section: 21-00000-01-GM) 
Cost:  $76,730     C.B. District:  County Wide 

4. (21-032) Resolution Authorizing the Award of a Bid for Asphalt Patching  
(Section 21-00000-03-GM) 
Cost:  $106,590.84    C.B. District:  County Wide 

5. (21-033) Resolution Awarding the Purchase of a Used John Deere 772D Grader 
Cost:  $165,000     C.B. District:  County Wide 

6. (21-034) Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Professional Services Agreement 
between the County of Winnebago and the Winnebago County Soil and Water 
Conservation District for Construction Site Erosion and Sediment Control Compliance 
Administration 
Cost:  $00.00     C.B. District:  County Wide 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report      

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
Finance Committee 
A. Ordinance to Opt-out of Preferential Assessment for Affordable Rental Housing 

Construction and Rehabilitation Pursuant to Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/15-178 Laid 
Over from September 9, 2021 Meeting               

B. Budget Amendment Sheriff's Office Laid Over from September 9, 2021 Meeting 
C. Annual Appropriation Ordinance Laid Over from September 9, 2021 Meeting 
D. An Ordinance Establishing Civil Fees, Criminal, and Traffic Assessments to be Charged by 

the Circuit Clerk Laid Over from September 9, 2021 Meeting 
 
Appointments 
A. River Bluff Advisory Board, Read in August 26, 2021 

1. Jaime Salgado 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
A. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an Agreement with 

William Hintz, Winnebago County Coroner for Voluntary Paid Administrative Leave  
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)  

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, October 14, 2021    

https://www2.illinois.gov/dceo/Pages/default.aspx
https://www2.illinois.gov/dceo/Pages/default.aspx


 

  
 

Awards,  
Presentations,  

Public Hearings,  
Public Participation & 

Proclamations 

 
 





 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 



























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 









 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Lafakeria S. Vaughn 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  September 23, 2021 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation (Diana Wisocki, as 

Administrator of the Estate of Inga Pearson, deceased v. 
Winnebago County, d/b/a River Bluff Nursing Home et al.) 

County Code:         Not Applicable 
Board Meeting Date:    September 30, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $175,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                          Budget Impact:  Within budgeted amount 

 
Background Information: Settlement of claim by the Administrator of the Estate of a former River 
Bluff Nursing Home resident against Winnebago County, d/b/a River Bluff Nursing Home  
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  Legal review conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office  
 
Follow-Up: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

SPONSORED BY:  JAIME SALGADO 
 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF LITIGATION (Diana Wisocki, as 
Administrator of the Estate of Inga Pearson, deceased v. Winnebago County, d/b/a River 

Bluff Nursing Home et al.) 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Diana Wisocki, as Administrator of the Estate of Inga Pearson, deceased v. 
Winnebago County, d/b/a River Bluff Nursing Home et al., is a pending civil action against the 
County, filed in the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, Winnebago County, Illinois, as case number 
2017-L-14; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff therein has agreed to settle all claims she has against the 
County for the sum of One Hundred and Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($175,000.00); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee, after having reviewed the facts and circumstances 
of the aforementioned case and after having conferred with the Winnebago County State’s 
Attorney, through his assistant, has determined it is in the best interests of the citizens of 
Winnebago County to settle this case on the terms set forth above.   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the Winnebago County State’s Attorney is hereby authorized to settle the 
aforementioned lawsuit by paying the Plaintiff therein the sum of One Hundred and Seventy-
Five Thousand Dollars ($175,000.00).  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Winnebago County Treasurer, Winnebago 
County Clerk, and Winnebago County Finance Department are authorized and directed to 
prepare and deliver to the Winnebago County State’s Attorney one or more County Warrants 
totaling One Hundred and Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($175,000.00); payable as directed by 
the State’s Attorney.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 



 
AGREE      DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman                                Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby          Jean Crosby  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Finance Committee of the 
County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of __________, 2021. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Department of Information Technology 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    September 23, 2021 

Resolution Title:  RESOLUTION FOR GIGABIT TO THE DESKTOP PROJECT TECH ENGINEERING  

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:  September 30, 2021 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes - ARP Funded               Appropriation Amount:   $174,947.50 

Baker-Tilly ARP Compliance Review:  Yes, Approved 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   61300-46600-RP008                    Budget Impact:   None - using ARP funds  

 
Background Information:   
The Winnebago County Department of Information Technology (WinCo DoIT) is required to provide a 
secure and reliable information technology infrastructure for public safety, public health, a nursing home, 
the circuit courts, elections and all other Elected and Appointed officials.  Covid19 placed an extreme 
demand, at times causing network congestion, on bandwidth whereas the increase in remote computing 
required fast and secure access to internal and external electronic resources.  Law enforcement, public 
health, courts, the nursing home, elections and other essential workers require both on premise and 
remote access to electronic resources.  Covid19 also created the requirement to become more creative 
with bi-directional data sharing with trading partners such as Axon, IDPH, IDOC, AOIC, prescription 
providers, medical providers, law enforcement agencies and others increasing the need for bandwidth.  
Covid19 also magnified the need to provide internet service to the unserved or underserved citizens in 
Winnebago County. 

 
Recommendation:  
The Winnebago County Chief Information Officer recommends using Heartland Business Systems for 
Gigabit to the Desktop Project Tech Engineering. 
 
Contract/Agreement:   
County to execute the Heartland Business Systems #258270 v1 agreement (Resolution Exhibit A).   
 
Follow-Up:    
The Winnebago County Board Chairman executed the HBS agreement. 



County Board:  09/30/21 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Jamie Salgado, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2021 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING GIGABIT TO DESKTOP PROJECT TECH ENGINEERING 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago Department of Information Technology; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, has reviewed the agreement from Heartland Business Systems, Resolution Exhibit 
A, received for the aforementioned service and recommends awarding an agreement; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an Agreement and Purchase Order with HEARTLAND BUSINESS SYSTEMS 5400 
PATTON DRIVE, SUITE 4B LISLE, ILLINOIS 60532, in the fixed cost of ONE HUNDRED AND 
SEVENTY FOUR THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED AND FORTY SEVEN DOLLARS AND FIFTY CENTS 
($174,947.50), 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Department of Information 
Technology, Department, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, 
and County Auditor.                  

                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



www.hbs.net  |  Linkedin.HBS.net  |  @HBSTech  800-236-7914  |   Heartland Business Systems, L.L.C.

Statement of Work 
Winnebago County 

GIGABIT TO THE DESKTOP 

ENGINEERING CONSULTING 

SOW Prepared By:

Matthew Cross 
Heartland Business Systems 
Phone: (262) 200- 1087 
mcross@hbs.net 

Jim Dillon 
Heartland Business Systems 
Phone: (630) 786-6047 
jdillon@hbs.net 

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A

http://www.hbs.net/
mailto:mcross@hbs.net


STATEMENT OF WORK 
Winnebago County – Gigabit To The Desktop engineering Consulting 

CONFIDENTIAL  2 

Project Overview 
This Statement of Work (“SOW”) reflects the services and material to be provided by Heartland Business Systems, LLC, 

hereinafter referred to as “HBS" for Winnebago County, hereinafter referred to as “Customer”.  

The objectives of the project are the following 

1. Complete a current state of network (switching/routing) and WAN infrastructure 

2. Complete a future state design of the network including bill of material creation. 

3. Assist with implementation of a NAC solution and Core network equipment 

4. Assist with implementation of access network equipment. 

HBS’s methodology aligns IT strategy to technology requirement in 5 phases; Identify Mission & Initiatives, Document 

Current State, Develop Target State, Gap Analysis, and create the Execution Strategy   

 

Project Scope 
HBS will provide the following services and material, herein referred to as “Scope”: 

In Scope 
HBS will conduct in-person meetings, on-site reviews, documentation reviews and as necessary configuration analysis to 

put together a recommendation for the customer infrastructure. Below are the items that will be reviewed as part of the 

process. 

 

The current state network documentation is separated into 4 general modules (Switching, Routing, Firewall, Wireless). 

The information in each module is dependent on the type of assessment that is being performed. The information 

provided is not limited to these modules.  

 

The current state deliverable will include the following items: 
 

PHASE  1 

• Network Discovery 

▪ Gather device information 

Current State Gap Analysis 
• Document • Align business and 

business and IT IT objectives, 
objectives quantify benefits; 

• Document develop IT 
organizational strategy 

KPIs 

Identify Mission & 
Initiatives 

• Identify current 
state 

• Ensure 
understanding 
people, process, 
and platforms 

Develop Future State 

• Create the 
solution design, 
integration plans, 
and operation 
procedures with 
phased approach 

• Phased 
implementation 
“partner“ 
approach 

• Continual service 
improvement 

Strategy / Roadmap 



STATEMENT OF WORK 
Winnebago County – Gigabit To The Desktop engineering Consulting 

CONFIDENTIAL  3 

▪ Switching 

▪ Routing 

▪ Firewalls 

▪ Wireless 

▪ Analyze individual device configuration 

▪ Switching 

▪ Routing 

▪ Correlate configuration to best practices for equipment 

▪ Switching 

▪ Routing 

• Documenting Network (up to 100 network devices, 7 major sites, auxiliary sites) 

▪ Inventory of devices 

▪ Device-specific information  

▪ Routers (full assessment) 

▪ Switches (full assessment) 

▪ Firewall (configuration documentation only) 

▪ Wireless (configuration documentation only) 

▪ High-level network/WAN architecture topology 

▪ Switching 

▪ Routing 

▪ Firewalls 

• Network Recommendations 

▪ Findings 

▪ Recommendations 

• Network Topology Review 

▪ Logical Routing 

▪ Recommendations 

 

PHASE 2 

The Network Design deliverable will include any initial short-term recommendations and a future state roadmap and will 
include the following items: 

 
▪ Network Design Workshop 

▪ Up to (1) – (2) hour High Level Design Meetings 

▪ Up to (2) – (4) hour Low Level Design Meetings 

▪ Workshops will be placed at different intervals, starting with the HLD and moving into the LLDs 

▪ Final LLD will be followed up with the documentation deliver and final network design review 

meeting 

▪ Network Design Documentation 

▪ Future State Topology 

• Detailed network/wan architecture and requirements 

▪ Implementation plan 

• Organized by phase 



STATEMENT OF WORK 
Winnebago County – Gigabit To The Desktop engineering Consulting 

CONFIDENTIAL  4 

• Steps will be detailed to categories of work 

• Interaction between legacy and future state 

• Implementation Timeline 

▪ Focus on Switching/Routing/Network Access Control 

▪ Execution Timeline 

▪ Licensing considerations and needs based on design 

▪ Hardware, software, IaaS and managed services recommendations for the current environment 

 

The HBS architect will complete additional design and review work off-site as required. After completing the assessment, 
a meeting will be scheduled with the customer for both of the following: 
 

▪ Documentation Delivery 

▪ Network Design Review Meeting 

 

Once the network design review meeting is complete, the following will be created by the HBS architect and provided to 

the customer. 

▪ Bill of Material for each site for network devices in scope following the future state design 

 

PHASE 3 (NETWORK) 

 

The HBS architect (and supporting staff) will implement the following equipment with the support of the onsite staff.   

▪ Up to (8) Hours per Core Network Device in scope of design (up to 12 network devices) 

▪ Includes support of ancillary systems (Network Access Control Systems, Network Management 

Systems) 

▪ Up to (4) Hours per Edge Network Device in scope of design (up to 4 network devices) 

▪ Includes support of ancillary systems (Network Access Control Systems, Network Management 

Systems) 

 

 

PHASE 3 (NAC) 

The HBS architect (and supporting staff) will support the implementation of a Network Access Control system into the 

environment as required by the future state. 

 

• Assist with provisioning of the Network Access Control system per the Bill of Materials. 

• Installation and Configuration 

• Identify network components 

• Identify host endpoints 

• Identify endpoint profiles and profiling techniques 

• Outline Authentication profiles and policies (AuthC) 

• Outline Authorization profiles and policies (AuthZ) 

• Create Visio Flow chart depicting how the secure and guest flows will function 

• Initial configuration of NAC cluster following Vendor best practices deployment guidelines  

▪ [2-4] Admin/Monitoring/Policy Nodes 

• Configure profiling probes in NAC 



STATEMENT OF WORK 
Winnebago County – Gigabit To The Desktop engineering Consulting 

CONFIDENTIAL  5 

• Configure authentication profiles for identified host devices in NAC (40 types of devices) 

▪ Windows based domain PC’s 

▪ Identified Staff Devices 

▪ Unknown Guest Devices 

• Configure authorization profiles for identified host devices in NAC (40 types of devices) 

▪ Windows based domain PC’s 

▪ Identified Staff Devices 

▪ Unknown Guest Devices 

• Wireless Specific 

▪ Configure global RADIUS AAA parameters on Wireless LAN Controllers identified for the deployment 

▪ Configure Guest Services in NAC to be used with the Guest Wireless Network (TBD by the customer) 

▪ Test wireless authentication for each identified host device on test WLAN before moving to production 

▪ Provide Training on wireless 802.1x NAC deployment 

• Wired Specific 

▪ Configure global 802.1x authentication parameters on [100] access layer switches identified for 

implementation 

▪ Configure interface authentication settings on [100] access layer switches identified for implementation 

▪ Create Monitor-Mode policy set with all rules necessary for the environment 

▪ Test all wired authentication/authorization rulesets 

▪ Create Low-Impact policy set to mirror Monitor-Mode policy set with the exception of the “results”, Low-
Impact will enforce security 

▪ Create any needed DACLs (up to 30) with IT staff support if needed 

▪ Migrate [100] switches to Low-Impact mode with IT staff [1] hour per network switch 

• Day 2 support  

• Validation of the implemented Solution 

• Documentation & Knowledge Transfer 

 

PHASE 4 (NETWORK SUPPORT) 

The HBS architect (and supporting staff) will support the implementation of the equipment. The onsite staff will be doing 

the physical deployment with HBS providing services of support as needed. 

▪ Up to (2) Hours per Edge Network Device in scope of design (up to 84 network devices) 

▪ Includes support of ancillary systems (Network Access Control Systems, Network Management 

Systems) 

 

Meeting Schedule 

• [1] customer meeting per week (30 minutes) 

▪ Does not include other meetings as listed in scope 

• [1] internal meeting per week 

Out of Scope 

• Remediation of any discovered issues on existing equipment 

• Review of any applications or platforms not listed in this scope of work 

• Customization of the existing applications 

• Building/Site physical connectivity model or changes to how the sites connect to each other 



STATEMENT OF WORK 
Winnebago County – Gigabit To The Desktop engineering Consulting 

CONFIDENTIAL  6 

• Any issues that arise from physical fiber or wiring 

• Any issues that arise from building power or UPS equipment 

• Network Access Control - Posturing of endpoints 

• Network Access Control – Bring Your Own Device Policies 

• Mobile Device Management 

• Server infrastructure (unrelated to network connectivity) 

• Firewall policy / changes to firewall not required for future state 

• Voice/Phone system modifications 

• Wireless Network Modifications / changes outside of future state requirements 

• Wireless Site Survey / Walkthrough 

• Existing equipment configuration changes / changes to network equipment not required for future state 

Any work or material not specifically identified in this document is not included in this Agreement.  

Assumptions and Dependencies 
• Customer will provide all 3rd party SSL certificates as required 

• Customer will provide SSH,HTTP-HTTPS,SNMP access to the devices 

• Customer will need to provide current high-level diagrams of their network infrastructure or environment 

• Customer will provide high-level WAN diagram for any remote locations 

• If an application or performance assessment is required, Customer will allow changes to the configuration to allow 

the creation of Netflow/SNMP information to the HBS appliance 

•  Customer to provide remote access prior to and throughout the project 

• Customer will provide enough space for installing the new equipment 

• Customer will allow the Heartland Business Systems engineer to connect their computer to Customer network in 

order to perform their duties.   Heartland Business Systems is willing to allow Customer to examine said notebook 

for current anti-virus software if needed.   

• Customer agrees that Heartland Business Systems will have unescorted and un-supervised access to any new 

components being installed as a part of this project.  Requirements for supervised access to equipment must be 

discussed at the project kick off meeting and extra charges may need to be added to the project to compensate for 

the additional time. 

• Customer will have working Internet access available to the engineer at the location where the work will be 

performed 

• All professional services work will be completed during the normal business hours of 8:00am – 5:00pm M-F, local 

time, unless other arrangements are agreed to.  Any time incurred after 5:00pm and before 8:00am will be charge at 

a rate of 1.5 per hour. 

• All travel expenses occurred on this project will be applied to the project hours accordingly. 

• Heartland Business Systems staff is available for additional hands-on training after implementation on a time and 

materials basis. 

• HBS and Customer will both ensure that adequate resources for which each respective party is responsible are 

available when needed throughout the duration of this engagement. The timely completion of this engagement will 

depend on the availability of the necessary Customer personnel committed to this effort. This SOW assumes that 

Customer’s subject matter expert, technical resources, and any named resources will be available as scheduled to 

provide information and access to the HBS team for the duration of the project.  



STATEMENT OF WORK 
Winnebago County – Gigabit To The Desktop engineering Consulting 

CONFIDENTIAL  7 

• Customer will provide a single point of contact with decision-making authority to interface with the HBS project 

manager. This person shall have the authority and is responsible for signing this SOW, any Change Orders, and the 

Acceptance documents throughout the project.  

• Customer is responsible for resolving problems outside the SOW that are beyond the control of HBS (i.e. software 

bugs, hardware failures, telecommunication circuits, server issues, and desktop issues). HBS can assist with these 

out of scope issues through the Change Management process.  

• The timely completion of this engagement will also depend on the availability and delivery of the product(s) 

associated with this SOW from other vendors. 

• Any potential dependencies discovered prior to implementation will be communicated to Customer to determine 

impact.  

Deliverables 
The following are the deliverables HBS will provide to Customer (herein referred to as “Deliverables”) for this Project: 

Any change to the Deliverables listed below will change the estimated total hours and can be included into the project 

deliverables with a change order.  

# Deliverable 

1 Network Documentation (Current State) 

2 Physical/Logical Diagram of Network (Current State) 

3 State Documentation (Findings and Recommendations for Current State) 

4 Physical/Logical Diagram of Network (Future State) 

5 Network Implementation Plan (Current State -> Future State) 

6 Network Hardware Requirement List or Bill of Material (Future State) 

7 Support of implementation of future state 

 

Service and equipment identified in this SOW does not include any taxes that may be applicable. Any such taxes shall be 

specified on an invoice as a separate line item. 

Winnebago County agrees to compensate herein referred to a “Payment” HBS for providing the Deliverables as outlined 

in the BOM.  Per the agreement between HBS and Winnebago County, this project is a fixed fee project per the Bill of 

Materials on Quote #’s. Any additional time due to change orders will be billed accordingly to Winnebago County.   

Unless specified to the contrary in writing by HBS, payment terms are net 30 days from date of invoice. 

Responsibilities 

Customer Responsibilities 
The items listed below shall be the responsibility of the customer. 

• Communication of outages 

• Assistance with information requests regarding unknown aspects of the network 



STATEMENT OF WORK 
Winnebago County – Gigabit To The Desktop engineering Consulting 

CONFIDENTIAL  8 

• Provide power strips and access to receptacles for onsite work 

Project Completion 
The Project will be complete when all Deliverables have been provided to Customer.   

Customer will have ten (10) business days to review each Deliverable.  If HBS is not provided a written notice of rejection 

describing the basis for rejection within this period, the Deliverables will be considered accepted.  

After the completion of the project, support may be obtained by contacting the HBS Account Manager.  Support will be 

billed at an agreed upon rate for services rendered.  

Change Management 
Additional products and services beyond the In-Scope deliverables listed above are considered out of scope and require 

a change request approved by the customer before any work can be continued. Any additions/deletions/modifications 

to the agreement, regardless of modification to project value, require a change request approved by the customer prior 

to either party performing work.  

HBS will submit a formal Change Request for customer approval that documents the out of scope work, and any 

associated costs or schedule changes. When a Change Request is approved and signed by Customer, it becomes a 

Change Order and is formally considered a part of this Agreement. 

Terms 
Binding Agreement - This Statement of Work (SOW) describes the professional services and/or products, and results to 

be provided by HBS. When mutually executed for implementation, this SOW becomes contractually binding on HBS and 

Customer under the terms and conditions of the HBS Standard Terms and Conditions (STC) document. 

Order of Precedence - Any ambiguity or inconsistency between or among the statements of this SOW and the Standard 

Terms and Conditions (“STC”) shall be resolved by giving priority and precedence in the following order: 

• Statement of Work (SOW) 

• Standard Terms and Conditions (STC) 

Work Hours - All professional services work will be completed during the normal business hours of 8:00am – 5:00pm M-

F Central Time, unless other arrangements are agreed to.  Any unplanned work occurring after 5:00pm or before 8:00am 

or on weekends is subject to a bill rate of 1.5 times the normal rate. 

Promises – No other promises have been made related to this SOW except for those stated in this SOW. This SOW 

supersedes all other agreements or promises related to this Project and SOW.   

Confidentiality Agreement 
Each party to this Agreement may have access to confidential information concerning the methodologies, pricing, and 

business practices of the other. Neither party shall make any use of such information of the other party except in 



STATEMENT OF WORK 
Winnebago County – Gigabit To The Desktop engineering Consulting 

CONFIDENTIAL  9 

connection with the exercise of its rights and responsibilities under this Agreement, except as may be necessary to 

comply with the laws or a court having proper jurisdiction. 

 

 



Date Issued:

09.16.2021

Expires:

10.13.2021

Prepared For: Prepared By:

County of Winnebago Chicago Illinois Office

August (Gus) Gentner
404 Elm St Suite 506
Rockford, IL 61101

Jim Dillon
5400 Patton Drive Suite 4B
Lisle, IL 60532

P: (815) 319-4444 P: 630-786-6047

E: gus@wincoil.us E: jdillon@hbs.net

Quote #258270 v1Gigabit to the Desktop

Services Price Qty Ext. Price

HBS-FF-PROJECT HBS Professional Services  - Fixed Fee - Gigabit to the Desktop $174,947.50 1 $174,947.50

Subtotal $174,947.50

Quote Summary Amount

Services $174,947.50

Total: $174,947.50

This quote may not include applicable sales tax, shipping, handling and/or delivery charges. Final applicable sales tax, shipping, handling and/or delivery charges are calculated and applied at invoice. The above
prices are for hardware/software only, and do not include delivery, setup or installation by Heartland (“HBS”) unless otherwise noted. Installation by HBS is available at our regular hourly rates, or pursuant to a prepaid
HBSFlex Agreement. This configuration is presented for convenience only. HBS is not responsible for typographical or other errors/omissions regarding prices or other information. Prices and configurations are
subject to change without notice. HBS may modify or cancel this quote if the pricing is impacted by a tariff.  A 15% restocking fee will be charged on any returned part. Customer is responsible for all costs associated
with return of product and a $25.00 processing fee. No returns are accepted by HBS without prior written approval. This quote expressly limits acceptance to the terms of this quote, and HBS disclaims any additional
terms.  By providing your “E-Signature,” you acknowledge that your electronic signature is the legal equivalent of your manual signature, and you warrant that you have express authority to execute this agreement and
legally bind your organization to this proposal and all attached documents. Any purchase that the customer makes from HBS is governed by HBS’ Standard Terms and Conditions (“ST&Cs”) located at
http://www.hbs.net/standard-terms-and-conditions, which are incorporated herein by reference. The ST&Cs are subject to change. When a new order is placed, the ST&Cs on the above-stated website at that time
shall apply. If customer has signed HBS’ ST&Cs version 2018.v2.0 or later, or the parties have executed a current master services agreement, the signed agreement shall supersede the version on the website.  Any
order(s) that exceeds the credit limit assigned by HBS shall require upfront payment from customer in an amount determined by HBS. HBS shall make this determination at the time of the order, unless customer has
previously submitted the required onboarding paperwork. In such event, HBS shall make this determination at the time of quoting.  QT.2021.v1.0

Acceptance

Chicago Illinois Office County of Winnebago

Jim Dillon

Signature / Name Signature / Name Initials

09/16/2021

Date Date

Page: 1 of 1Quote #258270 v1





 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

Prepared By:   Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office  

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    September 23, 2021 

Resolution Title:  RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF POLICE PATROL VEHICLES AND RELATED EQUIPMENT 

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:  September 30, 2021 

Budget Information: 
 
Was item budgeted?    Yes -  ARP Funded               Appropriation Amount:   $1,301,,973.88 

Baker-Tilly ARP Compliance Review:  completed and approved 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   61300 46410 RP006     Budget Impact:   None - using ARP funds  

 
Background Information:   
The Sheriff’s Office is requesting to replace 25 vehicles (14 marked squads, 3 unmarked squads, 4 
detective squads, 2 K9 squads and 2 Administrative vehicles.  The vehicles are equipped with safety 
equipment, radios, laptops, in-car video cameras, lights and sirens, provide transportation for police 
services and are authorized for emergency response and pursuit activities.  Our current vehicles were 
purchased in 2017 and are used 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.  They are not equipped to deal with 
pandemic risks, such as COVID 19. The Sheriff's Office responds to approximately 85,000 calls for service 
per year.  All the new vehicles will have the CLN Heated Interior COVID Sanitation Software installed in 
them.  First responders are on the front lines protecting all of us.  They are exposed to the virus and are 
in need of protective measures. 

 
Recommendation:  
Sheriff Gary Caruana has approved the request to purchase the vehicles. 
 
Baker Tilly: 
Approved the purchase as ARP compliant 
 
Follow-Up:    
Vehicles and equipment will be ordered once approved.  We have been told by the dealership that it will 
be approximately 26 to 28 weeks to get the vehicles. 



County Board:  09/30/21 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Jamie Salgado, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2021 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF  POLICE PATROL VEHICLES AND RELATED EQUIPMENT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff wants to replace 25 of the Sheriff’s 
Department’s vehicles which, due to their age and high mileage, are at the end of their 
useful life; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the quotes received for the aforementioned service and 
recommends awarding an agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has determined that the funding for the 

aforementioned purchase shall be paid as follows: 
 

61300 – 46410 – RP006 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the County is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an Agreement and/or Purchase Order to the following vendors, in the following 
amounts, as set forth in EXHIBIT A: 

 
 Morrow Brothers (State of IL Contract #19-416CMC-p-11453) - $999,200.00 
 Rock River Ford $120,000.00 
 Axon   $48,000.00 
 Getax   $76,000.00 
 Grafix Shoppe $6,700.00  
 Auto Beautifiers $4,800.00 
 Applied Concepts $23,750.00 

 Rock River Service $2,625.00 
 Tri-City  $20,898.88   
  

 



 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 

immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Sheriff’s 
Office, Department, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and 
County Auditor.                  

 
 
                 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAULA ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

 
 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 



 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 



ITEM QUANTITY DESCRIPTION VENDOR ITEM COST  EXTENDED COST 

Vehicles 3 2022 Ford Explorer (Unmarked) Morrow Brothers 

State of IL Contract #19-

416CMC-p-11453 46,000.00$     138,000.00$       

2 2022 Ford Explorer K9 Morrow Brothers 

State of IL Contract #19-

416CMC-p-11453 51,500.00$     103,000.00$       

2 2022 Ford Explorer (Admin) Morrow Brothers 

State of IL Contract #19-

416CMC-p-11453 37,500.00$     75,000.00$         

14 2022 Ford Explorer Morrow Brothers 

State of IL Contract #19-

416CMC-p-11453 48,800.00$     683,200.00$       

4 2022 Ford (Detective) Rock River Block Lowest Quote 30,000.00$     120,000.00$       

-$                     

Equipment -$                     

16  In Car Cameras Axon 3,000.00$        48,000.00$         

19 Notebook Getax 4,000.00$        76,000.00$         

14 Reflective Graphic Kits Grafix Shoppe 400.00$           5,600.00$            

2 Reflective Graphic Kits Grafix Shoppe 400.00$           800.00$               

1 Shipping of Graphic Kits Grafix Shoppe 300.00$           300.00$               

16 Installation of Graphics Auto Beautifiers 300.00$           4,800.00$            

19 Stalker Radar Unit Applied Concepts 1,250.00$        23,750.00$         

21 Radio Programming Rock River Service 125.00$           2,625.00$            

4 Equipment for Detective Vehicles Tri-City 5,224.72$        20,898.88$         

1,301,973.88$   

EXHIBIT A



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Veterans Memorial Hall 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    September 23, 2021 

Resolution Title:  Resolution Awarding Bid for Exterior Maintenance Repair Work for  
   Veterans Memorial Hall 

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:   September 30, 2021 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes -  CIP Funded                    Appropriation Amount:   $171,700. 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   82200-46320-C2121             Budget Impact:    N/A 

 
Background Information:   

In May 2021, Winnebago County board passed a Capital Improvement Plan which included 
repair work to the exterior of Veterans Memorial Hall. The project includes but is not limited to 
cleaning the building, painting the exterior window frames, hand railings, light fixtures and 
repairing the limestone entrance steps. The architectural Firm of Larson & Darby was hired to 
define the scope of the work and to oversee the bid process.  Bids were opened on September 
7th 2021 and Berglund Construction was the lowest bidder. 

 
Recommendation:  
Scott Lewandowski-Museum Director, Veterans Memorial Hall 
Joseph Winkelman- Architect, Larson & Darby Group  
 
Contract/Agreement:   

See Bid Tab for award details  
 
Legal Review:   

N/A 
 
Follow-Up:    
Veterans Memorial Hall will issue a County Purchase Order to the Berglund Construction 
Company. 



County Board:  09/30/21 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Jamie Salgado, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2021 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING BID FOR EXTERIOR MAINTENANCE REPAIR WORK  
 

 WHEREAS, Veterans Memorial Hall is owned and operated by the County of 
Winnebago to honor local Veterans; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is responsible for the maintenance of 

Veterans Memorial Hall; and 
 
WHEREAS, In May 2021, Winnebago County board passed a Capital Improvement Plan 

which included repair work to the exterior of Veterans Memorial Hall; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, has reviewed the bids received, see Bid Tab, for the aforementioned service and 
recommends awarding an agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has determined that the funding for the 

aforementioned purchase shall be paid as follows: 
 

82200-46320-C2121              
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an Agreement and Purchase Order with Berglund Construction Company, 8410 S. 
South Chicago Ave., Chicago IL 60617, in the dollar amount per year of One Hundred Seventy-
One Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars ($171,700.).  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Museum Director, Veterans 
Memorial Hall, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County 
Auditor.                                                                                                           

                                                                                                               Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 



 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAULA ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 
         BID TAB 

  EXTERIOR MAINTENANCE REPAIR WORK FOR VETERANS 
MEMORIAL HALL – 21B-2226 

  BID OPENING- SEPTEMBER 7, 2021- 2:00 P.M. 

 

 
VENDORS 

 

Berglund 
Construction 

Company 

Rockford 
Structures 

Construction 
Company 

Sjostrom & Sons, 
Inc. 

Bid Item #1 (Building, Cleaning, 
Brushing & Power Washing) $22,900 $32,000 $50,236 

Bid Item #2 (Building Façade Tuck 
Pointing) $12,800 $12,312 $7,500 

Bid Item #3 (Repair Miscellaneous 
Fascia & Downspout Sections) $36,800 $8,612 $11,100 

Bid Item #4A(Prepare, Scrape, 
Fill Holes, Prime,Paint, Etc) $47,600 $48,300 $48,832 

Bid Item #4B(Clean, Brush &  Power 
Wash North Façade) $18,300 $13,750 $22,459 

Bid Item 5(Prepare, Scrape Clean,Fill 
Holes, Apply Rust Treatment, Etc) $9,600 $15,312 $15,358 

Bid Item #6A(East Main Entrance 
Steps) $14,700 $19,812 $23,000 

Bid Item 6B(West Main Entrance 
Steps) $17,500 $30,000 $35,600 

Bid Item 7A(Remove Loose Pieces Of 
Limestone Wall On North Side Of 
East Exterior Stair Abutment Wall) 

$4,900 3,718 $8,100 

Bid Item 7B(Remove Loose Pieces of 
Limestone Wall On South Side Of 
West Stair Abutment Wall) 

$4,900 $7,500 $9,200 

TOTALS $171,700 
 

$177,566  
 

$208,926  
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Dave Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  September 23, 2021 
Resolution Title:   Approval of Budget Ordinance Coroner for Fiscal Year 2022 
 
County Code:       32500 
   
Board Meeting Date:    September 30, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $70,000 
If not, explain funding source:   General Fund 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  32500-41110                                Budget Impact:   $70,000 
 
Background Information: In FY21 the position of Chief Deputy Coroner was not filled. While 

we were doing our salary projections the position was not 
included. We would like to add the position back to the Coroner’s 
budget. 

 
Recommendation:    
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:             Sept 23, 2021 
 Lay Over: Sept 30, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Sept 30, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, the Coroner’s budget does not include salary for a Chief Deputy Coroner 
position, when it should. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-003 Coroner’s Regular Salaries. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



9/23/2021
Coroner David Rickert

0001

Department Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Laid Over 
Budget

Amendments 
under 

consideration
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

32500 41110 Regular Salaries $666,528 $70,000 $70,000 $736,528

Revenue

$70,000 $736,528
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2022-003

32500DEPT. BUDGET NO.FUND#:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

When the budget was created the position of Chief Deputy was not filled so it did not show up in our  Salary Projections. With the 
ongoing situation this position will need to be filled.

N/A

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$70K

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Dave Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  September 23, 2021 
Resolution Title:   Approval of Budget Ordinance General Fund Revenue for Fiscal 

Year 2022 
 
County Code:       13500, 17000 
   
Board Meeting Date:    September 30, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $160,000 
If not, explain funding source:   General Fund 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Various                                Budget Impact:   $160,000 
 
Background Information: After review FY21 actuals we determined that some of our 

estimates for FY22 are low. We would like to adjust some of our 
revenue line items. 

 
Recommendation:    
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:             Sept 23, 2021 
 Lay Over: Sept 30, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Sept 30, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, based our near end of the year review of actual revenues received we 
determined that some of our FY22 projections were lower than they should be.  
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-004 Revenue. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



9/23/2021
Various David Rickert

0001

Department Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Laid Over 
Budget

Amendments 
under 

consideration
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

Revenue
13500 34110 Admin Support $1,391,831 $40,000 $40,000 $1,431,831
13500 34950 Sale of Impounded Vehicles $250,000 $40,000 $40,000 $290,000
13500 33280 Franchise Fee Revenue $710,000 $50,000 $50,000 $760,000
17000 32220 General Sales Tax $1,200,000 $10,000 $10,000 $1,210,000
17000 32225 One Quarter Cent Sales Tax $8,500,000 $20,000 $20,000 $8,520,000

$160,000
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2022-004

13500, 17000DEPT. BUDGET NO.FUND#:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

After reviewing FY21 actuals we have decided to increase these revenues to meet FY22 expectations.

N/A

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$160K

Franchises, Admin support, Sale of impounded vehicles, Sales taxes

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Dave Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  September 23, 2021 
Resolution Title:   Approval of Budget Ordinance Memorial Hall for Fiscal Year 2022  
 
County Code:       45500 
   
Board Meeting Date:    September 30, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $36,626 
If not, explain funding source:   State Grant, and transfer of funds from one object code to 
another 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  45500                                 Budget Impact:   $36,626 
 
Background Information: Regular Salaries has been adjusted up to match expected salaries 

for FY22. The amount was taken from temporary salaries. Also we 
did not include grant revenue and expenses for building 
improvements that are going to be done in FY22.  

 
Recommendation:    
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:             Sept 23, 2021 
 Lay Over: Sept 30, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Sept 30, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2021 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, Memorial Hall has a grant for building improvements a change needs to be 
made to regular salaries. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-001 Memorial Hall. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



9/23/2021
Memorial Hall David Rickert

0155

Department Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Laid Over 
Budget

Amendments 
under 

consideration
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

45500 41110 Regular Salaries $56,078 $58,246 $2,162 $58,240
45500 41120 Temporary Salaries $26,000 $22,464 ($3,536) $22,464
45500 46320 Building Improvements $2,000 $232,000 $230,000 $232,000

Revenue
45500 32120 State Operating Grant $0 $192,000 ($192,000) ($192,000)

$36,626
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2022-001

45500DEPT. BUDGET NO.FUND#:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjust regular salaries to match anticipated FY22 Salaries. Also a grant has been awarded for building improvements that was not added 
to the original budget. We will pay the expenses for the improvements and then be reimbursed for them.

N/A

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$36,626 

State Grant

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Dave Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  September 23, 2021 
Resolution Title:   Approval of Budget Ordinance for Point Click Care for Fiscal Year 

2022 
 
County Code:       61300 
   
Board Meeting Date:    September 30, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $160,000 
If not, explain funding source:   American Rescue Plan Fund 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  61300-43167                                Budget Impact:   $160,000 
 
Background Information: The point click care software for the nursing home is to be paid 

over multiple years starting in FY22, but it was not budgeted for. 
 
Recommendation:    
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:             Sept 23, 2021 
 Lay Over: Sept 30, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Sept 30, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, the point click care software for the nursing home is to be paid over multiple 
years starting in FY22.  
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-005 ARP Point Click Care. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



9/23/2021
American Rescue Plan Fund David Rickert

0313

Department Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Laid Over 
Budget

Amendments 
under 

consideration
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

61300 43167 Software Subscriptions $100,000 $160,000 $160,000 $260,000

Revenue

$160,000
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2022-005

61300DEPT. BUDGET NO.FUND#:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

The point click care software for the nursing home is to be paid over multiple years starting in FY22, but was not budgeted for.

N/A

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$160K

American Rescue Plan funds

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Dave Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  September 23, 2021 
Resolution Title:   Approval of Budget Ordinance States Attorney for Fiscal Year 2022 
 
County Code:       31000 
   
Board Meeting Date:    September 30, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $90,000 
If not, explain funding source:   General Fund 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  31000-43140                                Budget Impact:   $90,000 
 
Background Information: In FY21 $100,000 was approved by the County Board for the 

State’s Attorney to engage an outside law firm to perform labor 
negotiations with the county’s unions. The negotiations are still 
ongoing, and around $10,000 will have been spent by the end of 
FY21. We would like to allocate the remaining $90,000 to the 
FY22 budget. 

 
Recommendation:    
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:             Sept 23, 2021 
 Lay Over: Sept 30, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Sept 30, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, the State’s attorney’s office has engaged in an outside law firm to negotiate 
with Winnebago county’s labor unions. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-002 State’s Attorney Labor Negotiations. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



9/23/2021
State's Attorney David Rickert

0001

Department Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Laid Over 
Budget

Amendments 
under 

consideration
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

31000 43140 Legal $27,000 $90,000 $90,000 $117,000

Revenue

$90,000 $117,000
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2022-002

31000DEPT. BUDGET NO.FUND#:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

$100,000 was approved by the County Board in FY21 for outside legal services for labor negotiations. The negotiations are still ongoing 
we need to roll over the remainder of the dollars for the legal fees.

N/A

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$90K

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:



    Resolution Executive Summary 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By:  
Committee:  
Committee Date: 
Resolution Title:   

County Code:      

Board Meeting Date: 

Dave Rickert 
Finance Committee 
September 23, 2021 
Motor Fuel Tax & Federal Aid Match Funds 

46300 & 46400 

September 30th, 2021 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    No  Appropriation Amount:  ( $1,850,000) 
If not, explain funding source:   Motor Fuel Tax & Federal Aid Match Funds 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Various    Budget Impact:   ($1,850,000) 

Background Information: Adjustments were made between funds and projects to reduce 
the Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) expenses so that the projected fund 
equity at the end of FY2022 is over the reserve amount for the 
MFT fund. The Baxter Rd project was completed in FY21 and we 
do no need to budget as much for 2022. 

Recommendation:  

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:    

Follow-Up:  Not Applicable 

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:  Sept 23, 2021 
Lay Over: Sept 30, 2021 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Sept 30, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman 

2022 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

      The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 and recommends 
its adoption. 

ORDINANCE 
WHEREAS, after review there are some changes that need to be made to the Motor Fuel 

Tax Fund & Federal Aid Matching Fund budget in regards to the Baxter Rd Project and other 
road maintenance projects.  

      WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-006 Motor Fuel Tax. 
. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE) (DISAGREE) 

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO,
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

PAUL ARENA PAUL ARENA 

STEVE SCHULTZ STEVE SCHULTZ 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN BUTITTA JOHN BUTITTA

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



9/23/2021

Various David Rickert

0163 & 0164

Department Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number Object (Account) Description

Laid Over 

Budget

Amendments 

under 

consideration

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

46300 46330 Roadway $870,000 ($500,000) ($500,000) $370,000
46400 42280 Asphalt - BP $430,000 ($100,000) ($100,000) $330,000
46400 42289 Sealcoating $600,000 ($100,000) ($100,000) $500,000
46400 46330 Roadway $1,400,000 ($950,000) ($950,000) $450,000
46400 46331 Preliminary Engineering $495,000 ($200,000) ($200,000) $295,000

Revenue

($1,850,000)

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2022-006

46300 & 46400DEPT. BUDGET NO.FUND#:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjustments were made between funds and projects to reduce Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) expenses so that projected fund equity at the end of 

FY22 is over the reserve amount for the MFT fund. The Baxter projected was completed in FY2021 and we do not need to budget as much 

for Fy22.

N/A

DATE SUBMITTED:

DEPARTMENT:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

($1,850,000)

2022

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:

SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



 
Attachment 

 ZONING COMMITTEE  
OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 

 September 30, 2021  
 
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......……………...…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

     PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE LAID OVER:   

1. Z-05-21 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE +/- 4.28 ACRES FROM THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT AND THE RR, RURAL RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) TO THE RE, RURAL ESTATE 
DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) requested by John Sweeney on behalf 
of Clifford and Joan Gray, Property Owners, for the property that is commonly known as 7135 
Flora Road, Rockford, IL 61101 in Winnebago Township. 
PIN: 14-01-100-018 C.B. District:     1  
Lesa Rating: Moderate   Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map:   YES 
ZBA Recommendation:  APPROVAL (6-0)           
ZC Recommendation:  APPROVAL (4-0)  

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

2.   COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not 
intended as an official public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, November  9, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the    
     County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting        
     is tentatively scheduled for Monday, November 22, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. in Room 303 of     
    the County Administration Building.   

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



  Resolution Executive Summary 

 

 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   
 

 

 

 

 

Prepared By:  Debbie Crozier/Human Resources  

Committee:    Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:   September 16, 2021 

Resolution Title:  Resolution Establishing the County Holiday Schedule for 2022   

Board Meeting Date:   September 30, 2021  

 

 

Budget Information: 
  

Was item budgeted?   N/A                         Appropriation Amount:   N/A                                      

If not, explain funding source:   

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A                   Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
 
 
Background Information:    This is the annual holiday schedule for calendar year 2022, to be 
reviewed and approved by County Board.   
  
Recommendation:   Patrick Thompson and Human Resources have reviewed the resolution 

presented to the Board and recommend its approval.   

Contract/Agreement:  N/A  
 
Legal Review:  Reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 
 
Follow-Up:  N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  September 30, 2021  
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2021 CR 
 

 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE COUNTY HOLIDAY SCHEDULE FOR 2022 
 

 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, pursuant to the Illinois Revised 
Statutes, Chapter 34, Paragraph 303, (12th), is authorized to fix the days and hours of opening and closing of the 
County offices and departments; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the County Board, AFSCME Local 473 and FOP Lodge 50 have agreed that the County Board 
shall designate the date upon which certain holidays shall be observed for purposes of their collective bargaining 
agreements. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that, for 
the calendar year 2022, all county offices and departments subject hereto shall be closed for all Saturdays, 
Sundays, and the following holidays subject to adjustment, if necessary, based on collective bargaining 
negotiations: 
 

DATE     DAY    HOLIDAY                        
 

December 31st    Friday    New Year's Day (Observed) 
 

January 17th        Monday   Martin Luther King Jr. Day  
  

February 21st      Monday   President's Day  
 

May 30th        Monday   Memorial Day  
 

July 4th     Monday   Independence Day  
  
September 5th     Monday   Labor Day 

  
October 10th    Monday   Columbus Day  

 
November 11th   Friday    Veteran's Day 

 
November 24th        Thursday   Thanksgiving Day 

 
November 25th       Friday    Thanksgiving Holiday 

 
December 23rd       Friday    Christmas Holiday (Observed) 

 

December 26th     Monday   Christmas Day (Observed) 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its 
adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver copies of this resolution 
to the Chairman of the County Board, all elected and appointed County Officers, the Chief Judge of the 17th 
Judicial Circuit, the Staff Representatives of AFSCME Local 473, and the President of FOP Lodge 50. 
 

 

              Respectfully Submitted, 
                   OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE  
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 AIME SALGADO 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

    
    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By: Purchasing on behalf of Facilities  
Committee:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:  September 16, 2021 
Resolution Title:  Resolution for the Emergency Purchase of a Food Steamer at River Bluff Nursing Home   
County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance      
Board Meeting Date:  September 30, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?  No                                                           Appropriation Amount:  $34,610.00  
If not, explain funding source:    
 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   FACILITIES 74500-46430                          Budget Impact:   N/A  
                                             

 
 
Background: 
 The food steamer at River Bluff Nursing Home had a catastrophic failure. The heat exchanger 
developed a crack. This allowed water to get into the burner and on all the circuit boards. There 
was an immediate need to get it replaced, so the kitchen could operate at full capacity to feed 
the residents.  
 
Recommendation:  
Shawn Franks, Facilities Engineer, recommends the purchase of a new steamer from Top Shot 
Commercial Kitchen Repair for Thirty-Four Thousand Six Hundred and Ten Dollars ($34,610.00). 
 
Contract/Agreement:  N/A 
 
Legal Review:  Not necessary, no agreement to review. 
 
 
 
 

         



County Board:  9/30/21 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations & Administrative Committee 
   

2021 CR 
 

RESOLUTION FOR THE EMERGENCY PURCHASE OF A FOOD STEAMER FOR  
RIVER BLUFF NURSING HOME 

 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 

Article VI, Section 2-341, that all purchases for and contracts for supplies, materials, equipment, and 
contractual services, the value of which is estimated to exceed $25,000, shall be based on 
competitive proposals by the County Board; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in Section 2-332 of the Purchasing Ordinance, allowance is made for emergency 
purchases defined as procurement obtained in circumstances which include threats to public 
health or safety, where immediate repairs to county property are required to protect or prevent 
against further loss or damage, or where immediate action is needed to prevent or minimize 
serious disruption to County services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an emergency situation occurred at River Bluff Nursing Home where the food 
steamer had a catastrophic failure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the purchase of a new steamer from Top Shot Commercial Kitchen Repair was 
needed immediately, so the kitchen could operate at full capacity to feed the residents; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, a Purchase Order to TOP SHOT COMMERCIAL KITCHEN REPAIR, 5075 26TH AVE., 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS, 61109 for the aforementioned item in the amount of Thirty-Four Thousand 
Six Hundred and Ten Dollars ($34,610.00), 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Facilities Engineer, County Administrator, 
Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, and County Auditor. 

 

 

 

 



                                                                        Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                           PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY  
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

Prepared By:   Veterans Memorial Hall 

Committee:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:    September 16, 2021 

Resolution Title:   Resolution Awarding Bid for Access & Accessibility Upgrades 

County Code:    Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:   September 30, 2021 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                   Appropriation Amount:   $196,100 

If not, explain funding source: Funding will come from 2014 IDNR grant reimbursement funds    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   45500-46320-04553        Budget Impact:    None 

 

Background Information:  

In March 2020, Veterans Memorial Hall was awarded a fully reimbursed grant from the Illinois 
Department of Natural Resources. The grant funds are for the removal and replacement of the 
existing accessibility walk path and walls, updating and widening the space to conform to current 
accessibility standards, as much as possible, within the perimeters of our building.  This project 
will also include the addition of a ramp to allow access to the upper east side of our newly 
completed memorial. This funding will increase the use of Veterans Memorial Hall by visitors with 
all types of accessibility challenges, and improve access to the museum.  

Recommendation:  

• Veterans Memorial Hall Museum Director, Scott Lewandowski recommends approval 
• Chief Financial Officer, Dave Rickert recommends approval   
• County Administrator, Patrick Thompson recommends approval   

Contract/Agreement:   See Bid Tab for award details  
 
Legal Review:   N/A 
 
Follow-Up:   Veterans Memorial Hall will issue a County Purchase Order to Rockford Structures 
Construction Company. 



County Board:  9/30/2021 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2021 CR 

 
WHEREAS, Veterans Memorial Hall is owned and operated by the County of 

Winnebago to honor local Veterans; and 
 

WHEREAS, many local Veterans have accessibility needs and still would enjoy visiting 
Veterans Memorial Hall; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago’s Veterans Memorial Hall was awarded a grant 
from the Illinois Department of Natural Resources to upgrade the accessibility entrance to 
the building; and 
 

WHEREAS, competitive bids were received for solicitation #21B-2217 on August 31, 
2021 for the following; 

 
ACCESS AND ACCESSIBILITY UPGRADES TO VETERANS MEMORIAL HALL 

 
WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the bids received, see Bid Tab, for the 
aforementioned service and recommends awarding an agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee has determined that the 

funding for the aforementioned purchase shall be paid as follows: 
 

45500 – 46320 - 04553              
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an Agreement and Purchase Order with ROCKFORD STRUCTURES CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY, 10540 NORTH SECOND STREET, ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61115, in the dollar amount of 
One Hundred Ninety-Six Thousand and One Hundred Dollars ($196,100).  
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING BID FOR VETERANS MEMORIAL HALL                            
ACCESS AND ACCESSIBILITY UPGRADES  



 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Veterans Memorial Hall Museum 
Director, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                  

 
                                                                             Respectfully Submitted, 

                                OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                           PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY  
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 

BID TAB 
 

  ACCESS AND ACCESSIBILITY UPGRADES TO  
  VETERANS MEMORIAL HALL – 21B-2217 

 
 BID OPENING - AUGUST 31, 2021 - 2:00 PM 

 
 

 
VENDORS 

 
Ringland-

Johnson, Inc. 
Sjostrom & 
Sons, Inc. 

Rockford 
Structures 

Construction 
Company 

BASE BID $197,300 $196,000 $173,000 

ALTERNATE #1- RECESSED 
WALL LIGHTS 

BASE BID/ALTERNATE BID $19,370 $19,500 $20,500 

ALTERNATE #2- SECURITY 
GLASS IN DOOR & SIDELITE 

BASE BID/ALTERNATE BID $2,630 $2,900 $2,600 

ALTERNATE #3- 
LANDSCAPING 

BASE BID/ALTERNATE BID $7,775 $6,100 $11,500 

 
                                                                  
 

                 



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 



























































 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

Supervisor of Assessments | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4468 | Email: thodges@wincoil.us      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By: Tom Hodges 
Committee: Finance 
Committee Date: 09/02/2021  
Ordinance Title: Ordinance to Opt-out of Preferential Assessment for Affordable Rental 
Housing Construction and Rehabilitation Pursuant to Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/15-178    
County Code: 
Finance Committee Date: 09/02/2021     
Board Meeting Date: 09/09/2021    
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A             Appropriation Amount:    N/A 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: N/A                               Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: Public Act 102-0175 amends the Illinois Property Tax Code to create 
two types of Preferential Assessments for the new construction or rehabilitation of low income 
rental properties which have seven or more units. This bill was created specifically for Cook 
County while allowing other counties to opt-out through a majority vote by their respective 
County Board. Counties which do initially opt-out may subsequently opt back in at a later date 
if they so choose. 
 
Recommendation: It is the recommendation of the Winnebago County Supervisor of 
Assessments that Winnebago County opt-out of the provisions of 35 ILCS 200/15-178 for the 
following reasons: 
 

• This bill was clearly written for Cook County (Cook County is repeatedly mentioned by name in 
the text) and by opting out, the County Board retains control of incentivizing new development 
at the local level instead of being required to defer to state law. By design, the County may opt 
back in at a later date if it so chooses. 

• Any reduction in taxable value to one property results in a corresponding increase in property 
taxes for other properties within that jurisdiction.  

• County Assessor’s offices throughout the state, including Winnebago County are not currently 
constructed to administer this program and are unable to readily absorb the significant costs 
that may be involved.    

Legal Review:  The Chief of the Civil Bureau for the Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s 
office, Lafakeria Vaughn, reviewed and revised the proposed ordinance on 08/26/2021.         

http://www.wincoil.us/


ORDINANCE 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2021 CO _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

SPONSORED BY:  JAIME SALGADO 
 

ORDINANCE TO OPT-OUT OF PREFERENTIAL 
ASSESSMENT FOR AFFORDABLE RENTAL 

HOUSING CONSTRUCTION AND 
REHABILITATION PURSUANT TO PROPERTY 

TAX CODE, 35 ILCS 200/15-178 
 

WHEREAS, the Illinois General Assembly passed Public Act 102-0175, 
which amended the Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/15-178) by providing for a 
preferential assessment for low-income housing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the reduction of taxable value for one property results in a 

corresponding increase in property taxes for all other taxpayers in a jurisdiction; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments has advised the Finance 
Committee and the County Board that the implementation of this program by the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois would require significant financial resources to administer; and 

 
WHEREAS, the preferential assessment is designed for a property in Cook County, 

Illinois but is applicable to all counties in Illinois; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/15-178 (b) provides that: “Any 

county with less than 3,000,000 inhabitants may decide not to implement one or both of the 
special assessment programs defined in subparagraph (1) of subsection (c) of this Section 
and subparagraph (2) of subsection (c) of this Section upon passage of an ordinance by a 
majority vote of the county board; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/15-178 (b) further provides that 

“Subsequent to a vote to opt out of this special assessment program, any county with less 
than 3,000,000 inhabitants may decide to implement one or both of the special assessment 
programs defined in subparagraph (1) of subsection (c) of this Section and subparagraph 
(2) of subsection (c) of this Section upon passage of an ordinance by a majority vote of the 
county board; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Finance Committee and the County Board finds it is in the best 

interests of the citizens of Winnebago County, Illinois to opt-out of the special assessment 
programs and the provisions of 35 ILCS 200/15-178. 



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, that the County of Winnebago, Illinois does hereby opt-out of 
the special assessment programs and the provisions of 35 ILCS 200/15-178. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and 

effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed 
to prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance upon its adoption to the Winnebago 
County Supervisor of Assessments and the County Treasurer. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted,  

          FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
AGREE DISAGREE 

 
 
 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman Jaime Salgado, Chairman 

 
 
Steve Schultz Steve Schultz 

 
 
John Butitta John Butitta 

 
 
Paul Arena Paul Arena 

 
 
Joe Hoffman Joe Hoffman 

 
 
Jean Crosby Jean Crosby 

 
 
Keith McDonald Keith McDonald 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  , 2021. 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 

ATTEST: 

Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois

 
 
 

 

Lori Gummow, Clerk of the 
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Gary Caruana 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  September 2, 2021 
Resolution Title:   Sheriff’s Personnel Budgets 
 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    September 9th, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $681,897 
If not, explain funding source:   Increased Federal Inmate Rev, Narcotic OT, Community 
Sheriff Services, Transfers from supplies lines. 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   21000, 24000, 26500, 40115, 40116             Budget Impact:   None 
 
Background Information: The Sheriff’s Office is projected to go over it’s personnel budget 

due to various circumstances within the department. He would 
like to increase his personnel budget and offset it with revenue 
from the federal inmate program that is over what was budgeted. 

 
Recommendation:    
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2021 Fiscal Year Finance:             Sept 2, 2021 
 Lay Over: Sept 9, 2021 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Sept 23, 2021 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2021 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, The Sheriff’s Office has entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement with 
the City of Rockford, City of Loves Park and Rosecrance for a Crisis Co-Responder Team 
Program. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 at its September 24, 2020 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2021-015 Co-Responder Program. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 



2 
 

 
   

 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



8/26/2021

Sheriff's Department Tami Goral

0001 &  0101

Department Org 

Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

21000 41110 Regular Salaries $4,556,999 $4,556,999 $265,300 $4,822,299
26500 41110 Regular Salaries $1,221,651 $1,221,651 ($75,000) $1,146,651
40115 41110 Regular Salaries $6,930,905 $6,930,905 $55,750 $6,986,655

40116 41110 Regular Salaries $3,595,383 $400,000 $3,995,383 $635,847 $4,631,230

24000 42210 Data Processing Supplies $174,890 $174,890 ($50,000) $124,890

40115 42270 Clothing $19,500 $19,500 ($18,000) $1,500

40115 43190 Other Professional Services $885,750 $885,750 ($20,000) $865,750

40115 43732 Office Equipment Repairs $110,000 $110,000 ($62,000) $48,000

40115 43942 Instruction & Schooling $176,863 $176,863 ($50,000) $126,863

Revenue
21000 34117 Federal Inmate Revenue $3,000,000 $0 ($621,385)
24000 32805 Narcotic OT $0 $0 ($15,506)
24000 34805 Community Sheriff Services $0 $0 ($45,006)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

$0 

2021

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

2021-016

VariousDEPT. BUDGET NO.

Budget transfer is needed to balance the Sheriff's Personnel Accounts.  

AMENDMENT NO:

SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2021 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Transfer dollars from Supplies, Federal Inmate Revenue, Narcotic OT Revenue and Community Sheriff Services 

Revenue



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

Prepared By:   Finance Department 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    September 2, 2021 

Resolution Title:  Annual Appropriation Ordinance  

County Code:   Winnebago County Code Sec 2 -38 Accounting and Financial Reporting  
   Policies 

Board Meeting Date:  September 9, 2021 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    This is the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget          

If not, explain funding source:  N/A    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A                           Budget Impact:    N/A 

 
Background Information:   

Annually the county is required to pass a budget. Said budget must comply with Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The Proposed Fiscal Year 2022 Winnebago 
County Budget provides the financial detail to the Annual Appropriation Ordinance. Please note, 
the Annual Appropriation Ordinance and the Proposed Fiscal Year 2022 Budget are and should 
be considered parts of the same document. This executive summary, the Annual Appropriations 
Ordinance along with its supporting Fiscal Year 2022 Budget is or will be available no later than 
9-15-2021 in electronic format and hard copy by contacting the Winnebago County Clerk. Also, 
from 9-15-2021 until 9-30-2021 this document will be on public display in the Winnebago County 
Clerk’s Office. 

Recommendation:  
 
This is the recommended budget based on communication with county board member and 
members of the Finance Committee.  
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
N/A 



1 
 

2021 CO 
 

ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 
 

 WHEREAS, the herein contained annual budget has been prepared in accordance with 
“An Act in Relation to the Budgets of Counties Not Required by Law to Pass an Annual 
Appropriation Bill”, as amended; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
State of Illinois, has received the herein contained estimated revenues, expenditure budgets and 
appropriations for the various departments and funds for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 
2021 and ending September 30, 2022; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said schedule of appropriations which specified the several objects and 
purposes of each item of expense is to be known as the Annual Appropriation Ordinance.  Also, 
said Annual Appropriation Ordinance applies to the various Federal and State Grants that are 
approved by the County Board or County Health Board and appropriate funding agency. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the amounts and purposes herein specified, or so much thereof as may be authorized 
by law, as may be needed, be and the same are hereby appropriated from the following funds:  
General Fund, Public Safety Sales Tax Fund, Public Health/Grants Fund, Detention Home Fund, 
County Highway Fund, County Bridge & Improvement Fund, Federal Aid Matching Fund, Motor 
Fuel Tax Fund, Rebuild Illinois Fund, Historical Museum Fund, Animal Services Fund, Veteran’s 
Assistance Fund, Employer Social Security Fund, Illinois Municipal Retirement Funds, Tort 
Judgment and Liability Insurance Fund, Health Insurance Fund, River Bluff Nursing Home Fund, 
Internal Services Fund, Law Library Fund, Recorder’s Document Fee Fund, Court Security Fee 
Fund, Document Storage Fund, Probation Service Fee Fund, Court Automation Fund, Children’s 
Waiting Room Fund, State’s Attorney Grants, Circuit Court Grants Fund, Child Support & 
Collection Fee Fund, Marriage and Civil Union Fund, Treasurer Delinquent Tax Fund, WinGIS 
Geog. (County Share) Fund; 9-1-1 Operations Fund, Children’s Advocacy Project Fund, CASA Fund, 
Vital Records Fee Fund, Victim Impact Panel Fee Fund, Host Fee Fund, Recorder’s Housing Fee 
Fund, Drug Enforcement Fund (Federal Seizure), Neutral Site Custody Exchange Fee Fund, 2010C 
Health Building Bond Fund, 555 North Court Street Operations Fund, Coroner’s Office Fee Fund, 
Deferred Prosecution Program Fund, 2012A Debt Certificates Fund, 2012B Refunding Bond Fund, 
2012C Refunding Bond Fund, 2012D Refunding Bond Fund, 2012E Debt Certificates Bond Fund, 
2012F Alternate Bond Fund, 2012G Alternate Bond  Fund, 2013A Refunding Bond Fund, 2013B 
Refunding Bond Fund, 2013C Debt Certificates Fund, 2013E Debt Certificates Fund, 2015A Debt 
Certificates Bond Fund, 2016A Refunding Bond Fund, 2016D Refunding Bond Fund, 2016E 
Refunding Bond Fund, 2017A Debt Certificate Fund, 2017B Refunding Bond Fund, 2017C 
Refunding Bond Fund, 2020A GO Bond Fund, 2020B Refunding Bond Fund, 2021A Refunding 
Bonds Fund, 2021B Refunding Bonds Fund,   I39/Baxter Water System Project Fund, 2015A 
Project Fund, 2012G Water System/Harrisville Road Fund, Mortgage Foreclosure Mediation 
Fund, Baxter Road Special Tax Allocation Fund, Water – Baxter Road Fund, Community 
Development Grants Fund, Hotel/Motel Tax Fund, Federal Forfeiture, SAO Fund, State Drug 
Forfeiture, SAO Fund, Check Offender SAO Fund, County Automation Fund, Sheriff’s Commissary 



2 
 

Fund, CJC Fitness Fund, Jail Medical Cost Fund, Mental Health Tax Fund, Circuit Clerk Electronic 
Citation Fund, Circuit Clerk Operations and Administration Fund, 2018 Pension Obligation Bonds 
Funds, Sheriff’s Department Grant Fund, Probation Grants Fund,  City Election Fund, 555 N Court 
Operations Fund, Capital Projects Fund, 2020A Project Fund, ERAP Fund, ERAP II Fund, American 
Rescue Plan Act Fund, CJCC Grants Fund, for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending 
September 30, 2022; and,  
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the object classifications to be used to identify the 
objects of expenditures within the various appropriations shall be known as personnel; supplies 
and services, capital outlays; debt service; transfers; 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
 
  



3 
 

                                                                                                      Respectfully Submitted,                                                                
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

   
(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIMIE SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

  

 

Department of Information Technology |  404 Elm St, Rm 506, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4300 |  Email: Helpdesk@wincoil.us 

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

Prepared By:   Circuit Clerk 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    September 2, 2021 

Resolution Title:  An Ordinance Establishing Civil Fees, Criminal, and Traffic Assessments 
to be charged by the Circuit Clerk 

County Code:   Winnebago County Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:  September 9, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A               Appropriation Amount:   N/A 

If not, explain funding source:   N/A 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A                             Budget Impact:    N/A 

 
Background Information:    

Chapter 34, Article I, of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances and Ordinance No.  
2019 CO 056, approved by the County Board on June 27, 2019, currently set forth the fees 
authorized by the County Board to be charged in both civil and criminal cases in Winnebago 
County.  Appellate decisions have resulted in a need for changes to civil filing fees. 
 
Recommendation:  
The Office of the Circuit Clerk is recommending the approval of the following resolution, which 
has been reviewed and approved by the Chief Judge and Winnebago County State’s Attorney. 
 
Contract/Agreement:   
See Attachment  
 
Legal Review:   
Yes - it was completed and court recommendations incorporated into the ordinance. 
 
Follow-Up:    
Circuit Clerk will make necessary programming changes to FullCourt Enterprise.    
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


 

1 
 

Sponsored by: Jaime Salgado 

 

ORDINANCE 

OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

SUBMITTED BY: FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

2021CO_______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING CIVIL FEES AND  

CRIMINAL AND TRAFFIC ASSESSMENTS  

TO BE CHARGED BY THE CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 34, Article I, of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances and 

Ordinance No.  2019 CO 056, approved by the County Board on June 27, 2019, currently set forth 

the fees authorized by the County Board to be charged in both civil and criminal cases in 

Winnebago County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Illinois General Assembly passed comprehensive legislation in 2018, 

which completely overhauls the criminal, traffic and civil fee structures in the circuit courts 

throughout the State of Illinois; and  

 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the legislation was to consolidate fees into unified schedules 

for all counties, to realign fees to be constitutional, and to provide for fee waivers for low income 

individuals; and 

 

WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2019, Section 27.1b of the Clerks of Courts Act, 705 ILCS 

105/27.1b, sets out the fees to be charged in all counties in the State of Illinois by the Clerks of the 

Circuit Court for the filing of pleadings and for other services provided by the Clerks in civil cases; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 27.1b of the Clerks of Courts Act creates four schedules for civil 

filing fees, three schedules for civil appearance fees, and establishes various other fees that Clerks 

of the Circuit Court are authorized to assess in civil cases, all of which are generally classified as 

“not to exceed” amounts; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 27.1b provides that, unless otherwise specified, the amount of the 

fees shall be determined by ordinance or resolution of the county board and remitted to the county 

treasurer to be used for purposes related to the operation of the court system in the county; and 

 

WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2019, the newly-adopted Criminal and Traffic Assessment 

Act, 705 ILCS 105/135 et seq., sets out minimum fines to be levied and assessments to be charged 

in criminal and traffic cases by the Clerks of the Circuit Court in all counties in the State of Illinois; 

and 

 



 

2 
 

WHEREAS, Sections 15-5 through 15-65 of the Criminal and Traffic Assessment Act 

establish thirteen (13) assessment schedules for various criminal, traffic, conservation and non-

traffic offenses, and for each schedule the County’s portion of the assessment is specifically listed; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Sections 15-5 through 15-65 break down how the assessment amounts are to 

be distributed to various County funds, if those funds are in existence; otherwise, the amounts 

designated for funds that are not in existence are to be placed in the County’s general fund for 

purposes related to operation of the court system in the County. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Board for the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that Sections 34-1, 34-2, 34-3, 34-4, 34-7, 34-10, 34-11, 34-12, and 34-34 as 

contained in Chapter 34, Article I, of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances, and Ordinance 

No. 2014 CO 033 and 2019 CO 056 are hereby repealed in their entireties and replaced with the 

following: 

 

Sec. 34 – 1. Civil Fees and Criminal Assessments. 

 

Civil fees shall meet the requirements of Section 27.1b of the Clerks of Courts Act, 705 

ILCS 105/27.1b, Section 15-1504.1 of the Code of Civil Procedure, 735 ILCS 5/15-1504.1, 

Supreme Court Rule 99.1, and 17th Judicial Circuit Court Local Rule 2.14.  Criminal 

assessments shall meet the requirements of the Criminal and Traffic Assessment Act, 705 

ILCS 105/135 et seq. 

 

Sec. 34 – 2. Civil Fees. 

 

A. Fees in civil matters shall be assessed and distributed as set forth herein, in compliance 

with Section 27.1b of the Clerks of Courts Act, 705 ILCS 105/27.1b, Section 15-1504.1 

of the Code of Civil Procedure, 735 ILCS 5/15-1504.1, Illinois Supreme Court Rule 

99.1, and 17th Judicial Circuit Local Rule 2.14. 

 

B. The fees for filing a complaint, petition or other pleading initiating a civil action shall 

be as set forth in the schedules below in accordance with case categories established by 

the Illinois Supreme Court: 

 

1. SCHEDULE 1: $314.00 (plus additional filing fees for foreclosure cases, as set 

forth in subsection (e) below) to be divided as follows: 

 

a. $45.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and deposited as follows: 

(1) Court Automation Fund - $20.00 

(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $20.00 

(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $5.00 

 

b. $19.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Mandatory Arbitration Fund - $8.00 

(2) Access to Justice Fund - $2.00 



 

3 
 

(3) Supreme Court Special Purposes Fund - $9.00 

 

c. $250.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $180.00 

(2) C.A.S.A. – $3.00 

(3) Court Security Fund - $40.00 

(4) Neutral Site Exchange - $14.00 

(5) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $13.00 

 

d. $29.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 

(2) Law Library Fund - $21.00 

 

e. The following additional filing fees shall be assessed on residential foreclosure 

cases only.  

 

(1) First Tier Residential Foreclosure Cases -  $65.00 to be divided as 

follows: 

(a) $65.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as 

follows: 

i. Foreclosure Mediation Fee Fund - $65.00 

 

(2) Second Tier Residential Foreclosure Cases -  $65.00 to be divided as 

follows: 

(a) $65.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as 

follows: 

i. Foreclosure Mediation Fee Fund - $65.00 

 

 

(3) Third Tier Residential Foreclosure Cases -  $65.00 to be divided as 

follows: 

(a) $65.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as 

follows: 

i. Foreclosure Mediation Fee Fund - $65.00 

 

2. SCHEDULE 2: $264.00 to be divided as follows: 

 

a. $45.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and deposited as follows: 

(1) Court Automation Fund - $20.00 

(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $20.00 

(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $5.00 

 

b. $19.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) Mandatory Arbitration Fund - $8.00 

(2) Access to Justice Fund - $2.00 

(3) Supreme Court Special Purposes Fund - $9.00 



 

4 
 

 

c. $200.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $130.00 

(2) C.A.S.A. – $3.00 

(3) Court Security Fund - $40.00 

(4) Neutral Site Exchange - $14.00 

(5) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $13.00 

 

d. $29.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 

(2) Law Library Fund - $21.00 

 

3. SCHEDULE 3: $89.00 to be divided as follows: 

 

a. $22.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and deposited as follows: 

(1) Court Automation Fund - $10.00 

(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $10.00 

(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $2.00 

 

b. $11.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) Access to Justice Fund - $2.00 

(2) Supreme Court Special Purposes Fund - $9.00 

 

c. $56.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $28.00 

(2) C.A.S.A. – $0.00 

(3) Court Security Fund - $10.00 

(4) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 

(5) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $10.00 

 

d. $29.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 

(2) Law Library Fund - $21.00 

 

4. SCHEDULE 4: $0.00 

 

C. The fees for filing an appearance in a civil action shall be as set forth in the schedules 

below in accordance with case categories established by the Illinois Supreme Court: 

 

1. SCHEDULE 1: $189.00 to be divided as follows: 

 

a. $45.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and distributed as 

follows: 

(1) Court Automation Fund - $20.00 

(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $20.00 

(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $5.00 



 

5 
 

 

b. $19.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) Mandatory Arbitration Fund - $8.00 

(2) Access to Justice Fund - $2.00 

(3) Supreme Court Special Purposes Fund - $9.00 

 

c. $125.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $61.00 

(2) C.A.S.A. – $3.00 

(3) Court Security Fund - $36.00 

(4) Neutral Site Exchange - $12.00 

(5) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $13.00 

 

d. $29.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 

(2) Law Library Fund - $21.00 

 

 

 

 

3. SCHEDULE 2: $109.00 to be divided as follows: 

 

a. $10.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and distributed as 

follows: 

(1) Court Automation Fund - $5.00 

(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $5.00 

(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $0.00 

 

b. $9.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) Supreme Court Special Purposes Fund - $9.00 

 

c. $90.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $40.00 

(2) C.A.S.A. – $3.00 

(3) Court Security Fund - $25.00 

(4) Neutral Site Exchange - $12.00 

(5) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $10.00 

 

d. $29.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 

(2) Law Library Fund - $21.00 

 

D. The fees for filing a counterclaim or third party complaint in a civil action shall be as 

set forth in the schedules below in accordance with case categories established by the 

Illinois Supreme Court: 

 



 

6 
 

1. SCHEDULE 1: $125.00 to be divided as follows: 

 

a. $125.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $121.00 

(2) Court Security Fund - $4.00 

 

2. SCHEDULE 2: $155.00 to be divided as follows: 

 

a. $35.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and deposited as follows: 

(1) Court Automation Fund - $15.00 

(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $15.00 

(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $5.00 

 

b. $10.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) Mandatory Arbitration Fund - $8.00 

(2) Access to Justice Fund - $2.00 

 

c. $110.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $92.00 

(2) Court Security Fund - $15.00 

(3) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $3.00 

 

E. Except as otherwise specifically provided, the following miscellaneous fees are to be 

deposited in the County General Fund to be used for purposes related to the operation 

of the court system in the County: 

 

1. Alias summons or citation:     $5.00 

 

2. Jury services:       $212.50 
 

3. Change of venue:      $40.00 
 

4. Petition to vacate or modify: 

a. If filed within 30 days:    $50.00 

b. If filed after 30 days:    $75.00 

c. Notice sent to Secretary of State:   $40.00 

 

5. Appeals preparation: 

a. If record is 100 pages or less:   $50.00 

b. If record is between 100 and 200 pages:  $100.00 

c. If record is 200 pages or more:   Add’l fee of $0.25 per page 

 

6. Garnishment, wage deduction, and citation proceedings: 

a. Amount in controversy $1,000 or less:  $15.00 

b. Amount in controversy greater than $1,000   

and not more than $5,000:     $30.00 

c. Amount in controversy greater than $5,000: $50.00 



 

7 
 

 

7. Collections: 

a. All collections (except State and County and maintenance and child support 

cases):  2.5% of the amount collected and turned over 

b. In child support and maintenance cases: $36 annually to be deposited in the 

Child Support Maintenance Fund 

c. Certifications to Secretary of State pursuant to Section 7-703 of the Family 

Financial Responsibility Law: $5.00 

d. In proceedings to foreclose a delinquent real estate tax lien the State’s Attorney 

shall receive a fee of 10% of the total amount realized from the sale of real 

estate sold in the proceedings 

 

8. Mailing: $10.00 plus the cost of postage 

 

9. For each certified copy of a judgment, following the first copy: $10.00 
 

10. Certification, authentication, and reproduction: 

a. Each certification or authentication for taking acknowledgement of a deed or 

other instrument in writing with the seal of office: $6.00 

b. Reproduction of any document contained in the Clerk’s files: 

(1) $2.00 for the first page 

(2) $0.50 per page for the next 19 pages 

(3) $0.25 per page for all additional pages 

 

11. For each record search, within a division or municipal district: $6.00 for each year 

searched 

 

12. For each page of hard copy print output, when case records are maintained on an 

automated medium: $6.00 
 

13. Performing a marriage in court: $10.00 
 

14. For filing each deed of voluntary assignment: $20.00; for recording a deed of 

voluntary assignment: $0.50 for each 100 words 
 

15. Expungement petition: $60.00 and an additional fee of $4.00 for each certified copy 

of an order to expunge arrest records 
 

16. Probate filings: 

a. For each account (other than one final account) filed in the estate of a decedent 

or ward: $25.00 

b. Filing a claim: 

(1) Amount claimed greater than $150 and not more than $500: $25.00 

(2) Amount claimed greater than $500 and not more than $10,000: $40.00 

(3) Amount claimed greater than $10,000: $60.00 

c. For filing a claim, petition, or supplemental proceeding based upon an action 

seeking equitable relief: $60.00 



 

8 
 

d. For a jury demand: $137.50 

e. For each certified copy of letters of office, of court orders or other certifications: 

$2.00 per page 

f. For each exemplification: $2.00 plus the fee for certification 

 

17. For correction of the case number, case title, or attorney computer identification 

number, if required by rule of court, on any document filed in the Clerk’s Office: 

$25.00 

 

F. Unpaid Fees. 

 

1. Unless a court ordered payment schedule is implemented or the fee requirements 

of this Section are waived by court order, the Clerk is authorized to add to any 

unpaid fees and costs a delinquency amount equal to 15% of the unpaid fees that 

remain unpaid after 90 days.   

 

2. Delinquency amounts collected pursuant to this provision shall be deposited into 

the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund to defray additional 

administrative costs incurred by the Clerk in collecting unpaid fees and costs. 

 
Sec. 34 – 3.  Criminal Assessments. 

A. Assessments shall be imposed in criminal, traffic, conservation and non-traffic matters 

in accordance with the schedules set forth in the Criminal and Traffic Assessment Act, 

705 ILCS 135/1-5 et seq., and shall be distributed as set forth herein.  

 

B. Schedules: 

 

1. SCHEDULE 1: Generic Felony Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $549.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $354.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $255.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $185.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 

iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(e) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 

(f) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 

(g) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 



 

9 
 

(h) $20.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 

(i) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 

(2) $195.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

2. SCHEDULE 2: Felony DUI Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $1,709.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $399.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $300.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $230.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 

iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(e) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 

(f) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 

(g) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 

(h) $20.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 

(i) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 

(2) $1,110.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

(3) $200.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

3. SCHEDULE 3: Felony Drug Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $2,215.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $354.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $255.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $185.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 



 

10 
 

iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(e) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 

(f) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 

(g) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 

(h) $20.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 

(i) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 

(2) $1,861.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

4. SCHEDULE 4: Felony Sex Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $1,314.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $354.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $255.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $185.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 

iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(e) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 

(f) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 

(g) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 

(h) $20.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 

(i) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 

(2) $960.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

5. SCHEDULE 5: Generic Misdemeanor Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $439.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $282.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 

(e) $185.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 



 

11 
 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $115.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 

iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(f) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 

(g) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 

(h) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 

(i) $10.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 

(j) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 

(2) $155.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

(3) $2.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 

 

6. SCHEDULE 6: Misdemeanor DUI Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $1,381.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $322.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 

(e) $225.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $155.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 

iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(f) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 

(g) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 

(h) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 

(i) $10.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 

(j) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 

(2) $707.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

(3) $352.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

7. SCHEDULE 7: Misdemeanor Drug Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $905.00 and remit as follows: 

 



 

12 
 

(1) $282.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 

(e) $185.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $115.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 

iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(f) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 

(g) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 

(h) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 

(i) $10.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 

(j) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 

(2) $621.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

(3) $2.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

8. SCHEDULE 8: Misdemeanor Sex Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $1,184.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $282.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 

(e) $185.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $115.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 

iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(f) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 

(g) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 

(h) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 

(i) $10.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 

(j) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 



 

13 
 

(2) $900.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

(3) $2.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

9. SCHEDULE 9: Major Traffic Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $325.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $203.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 

(e) $150.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $80.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 

iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

 

(2) $97.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

(3) $25.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

10. SCHEDULE 10: Minor Traffic Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $226.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $168.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 

(e) $115.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $60.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $2.00 

iv. Specialty Courts: $3.00 

 

(2) $46.00 to the State Treasurer 



 

14 
 

 

(3) $12.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 

 

11. SCHEDULE 10.5: Truck Weight and Load Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $260.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $168.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 

(e) $115.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $105.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $10.00 

 

(2) $92.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

12. SCHEDULE 11: Conservation Offenses 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $195.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $168.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 

(e) $115.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $105.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $10.00 

 

(2) $25.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

(3) $2.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 

 

13. SCHEDULE 12: Dispositions under Supreme Court Rule 529 (No Court 

Appearance Required Traffic Offenses) 

 



 

15 
 

a. The Clerk shall collect $164.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $100.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 

(e) $47.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $37.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $10.00 

 

(2) $14.00 to the State Treasurer 

 

(3) $50.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

14. SCHEDULE 13: Petty Offense, Business Offense, or Non-Traffic Ordinance 

Violation 

 

a. The Clerk shall collect $100.00 and remit as follows: 

 

(1) $75.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as follows: 

 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 

(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 

(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 

(e) $22.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $12.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $10.00 

 

(2) $25.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 

  

C. Unpaid Assessments. 

 

1. Unless a court ordered payment schedule is implemented or the assessment 

requirements of this Section are waived by court order, the Clerk is authorized to 

add to any unpaid assessments a delinquency amount equal to 15% of the unpaid 

assessments that remain unpaid after 90 days.   

 



 

16 
 

2. Delinquency amounts collected pursuant to this provision shall be deposited into 

the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund to defray additional 

administrative costs incurred by the Clerk in collecting unpaid assessments. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be effective on August 23, 2021. 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 

and directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Ordinance to the Clerk of the Circuit 

Court, the Chief Judge of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, and the Winnebago County Bar 

Association. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

  



 

17 
 

AGREE     DISAGREE 

 

 

______________________________ __________________________________  

Jaime Salgado, Chairman      Jaime Salgado, Chairman 

 

 

______________________________ ___________________________________ 

 Jean Crosby                Jean Crosby       

 

 

______________________________ __________________________________ 

Joe Hoffman     Joe Hoffman 

 

 

______________________________ ___________________________________ 

Steve Schultz     Steve Schultz 

 

 

______________________________ __________________________________ 

John Butitta                           John Butitta 

 

 

______________________________ ___________________________________ 

Paul Arena                           Paul Arena 

 

 

______________________________ ___________________________________ 

Keith McDonald    Keith McDonald 

 
       

 APPROVED this _____ day of __________________________, 2021 by the County 

Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 

 

       ___________________________________ 

        Joseph V.Chiarelli 

       Chairman of the County Board 

       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

Attested by: 

 

_____________________________ 

Lori Gummow 

Clerk of the County Board 

of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 

 

Ayes: ______  Nays: ______  Absent: ____ 



1 
 

Sponsored by: Jaime Salgado 
 

ORDINANCE 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

202119CO_______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING CIVIL FEES AND  
CRIMINAL AND TRAFFIC ASSESSMENTS  

TO BE CHARGED BY THE CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 34, Article I, of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances and 
Ordinance No. 2014  2019 CO 033 056, approved by the County Board on May 22, 2014 June 27, 
2019, currently set forth the fees authorized by the County Board to be charged in both civil and 
criminal cases in Winnebago County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois General Assembly passed comprehensive legislation in 2018, 

which completely overhauls the criminal, traffic and civil fee structures in the circuit courts 
throughout the State of Illinois; and  

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the legislation was to consolidate fees into unified schedules 

for all counties, to realign fees to be constitutional, and to provide for fee waivers for low income 
individuals; and 

 
WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2019, Section 27.1b of the Clerks of Courts Act, 705 ILCS 

105/27.1b, sets out the fees to be charged in all counties in the State of Illinois by the Clerks of the 
Circuit Court for the filing of pleadings and for other services provided by the Clerks in civil cases; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 27.1b of the Clerks of Courts Act creates four schedules for civil 

filing fees, three schedules for civil appearance fees, and establishes various other fees that Clerks 
of the Circuit Court are authorized to assess in civil cases, all of which are generally classified as 
“not to exceed” amounts; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 27.1b provides that, unless otherwise specified, the amount of the 

fees shall be determined by ordinance or resolution of the county board and remitted to the county 
treasurer to be used for purposes related to the operation of the court system in the county; and 

 
WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2019, the newly-adopted Criminal and Traffic Assessment 

Act, 705 ILCS 105/135 et seq., sets out minimum fines to be levied and assessments to be charged 
in criminal and traffic cases by the Clerks of the Circuit Court in all counties in the State of Illinois; 
and 

 



2 
 

WHEREAS, Sections 15-5 through 15-65 of the Criminal and Traffic Assessment Act 
establish thirteen (13) assessment schedules for various criminal, traffic, conservation and non-
traffic offenses, and for each schedule the County’s portion of the assessment is specifically listed; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 15-5 through 15-65 break down how the assessment amounts are to 

be distributed to various County funds, if those funds are in existence; otherwise, the amounts 
designated for funds that are not in existence are to be placed in the County’s general fund for 
purposes related to operation of the court system in the County. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Sections 34-1, 34-2, 34-3, 34-4, 34-7, 34-10, 34-11, 34-12, and 34-34 as 
contained in Chapter 34, Article I, of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances, and Ordinance 
No. 2014 CO 033 and 2019 CO 056 are hereby repealed in their entireties and replaced with the 
following: 

 
Sec. 34 – 1. Civil Fees and Criminal Assessments. 
 
Civil fees shall meet the requirements of Section 27.1b of the Clerks of Courts Act, 705 
ILCS 105/27.1b, Section 15-1504.1 of the Code of Civil Procedure, 735 ILCS 5/15-1504.1, 
Supreme Court Rule 99.1, and 17th Judicial Circuit Court Local Rule 2.14.  Criminal 
assessments shall meet the requirements of the Criminal and Traffic Assessment Act, 705 
ILCS 105/135 et seq. 
 
Sec. 34 – 2. Civil Fees. 
 
A. Fees in civil matters shall be assessed and distributed as set forth herein, in compliance 

with Section 27.1b of the Clerks of Courts Act, 705 ILCS 105/27.1b, Section 15-1504.1 
of the Code of Civil Procedure, 735 ILCS 5/15-1504.1, Illinois Supreme Court Rule 
99.1, and 17th Judicial Circuit Local Rule 2.14. 
 

B. The fees for filing a complaint, petition or other pleading initiating a civil action shall 
be as set forth in the schedules below in accordance with case categories established by 
the Illinois Supreme Court: 
 
1. SCHEDULE 1: $314.00 (plus additional filing fees for foreclosure cases, as set 

forth in subsection (e) below) to be divided as follows: 
 
a. $45.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and deposited as follows: 

(1) Court Automation Fund - $20.00 
(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $20.00 
(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $5.00 

 
b. $19.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Mandatory Arbitration Fund - $8.00 
(2) Access to Justice Fund - $2.00 



3 
 

(3) Supreme Court Special Purposes Fund - $9.00 
 

c. $250.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 
(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $180.00 
(2) C.A.S.A. – $3.00 
(3) Court Security Fund - $40.00 
(4) Neutral Site Exchange - $14.00 
(5) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $13.00 

 
d. $29.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 
(2) Law Library Fund - $21.00 

 
e. The following additional filing fees shall be assessed on residential foreclosure 

cases only, . according the tiers established pursuant to 735 ILCS 5/15-1504.1: 
 
(1) First Tier Residential Foreclosure Cases - $615.00 $65.00 to be divided 

as follows: 
(a) $540.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as 

follows: 
i. Abandoned Residential Property Municipality Relief Fund - 

$350.00 
ii. Foreclosure Prevention Program Graduated Fund - $140.00 

iii. Foreclosure Prevention Program Fund - $50.00 
(b) $10.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and 

deposited as follows: 
i. Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - 

$10.00 
(c)(a) $65.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as 

follows: 
i. Foreclosure Mediation Fee Fund - $65.00 

 
(2) Second Tier Residential Foreclosure Cases - $365.00 $65.00 to be 

divided as follows: 
(a) $295.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as 

follows: 
i. Abandoned Residential Property Municipality Relief Fund - 

$175.00 
ii. Foreclosure Prevention Program Graduated Fund - $70.00 

iii. Foreclosure Prevention Program Fund - $50.00 
(b) $5.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and 

deposited as follows: 
i. Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - 

$5.00 
(c)(a) $65.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as 

follows: 



4 
 

i. Foreclosure Mediation Fee Fund - $65.00 
 
 

(3) Third Tier Residential Foreclosure Cases - $165.00 $65.00 to be divided 
as follows: 
(a) $99.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as 

follows: 
i. Abandoned Residential Property Municipality Relief Fund - 

$35.00 
ii. Foreclosure Prevention Program Graduated Fund - $14.00 

iii. Foreclosure Prevention Program Fund - $50.00 
(b) $1.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and 

deposited as follows: 
i. Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - 

$1.00 
(c)(a) $65.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as 

follows: 
i. Foreclosure Mediation Fee Fund - $65.00 

 
2. SCHEDULE 2: $264.00 to be divided as follows: 

 
a. $45.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and deposited as follows: 

(1) Court Automation Fund - $20.00 
(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $20.00 
(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $5.00 

 
b. $19.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) Mandatory Arbitration Fund - $8.00 
(2) Access to Justice Fund - $2.00 
(3) Supreme Court Special Purposes Fund - $9.00 

 
c. $200.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $130.00 
(2) C.A.S.A. – $3.00 
(3) Court Security Fund - $40.00 
(4) Neutral Site Exchange - $14.00 
(5) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $13.00 

 
d. $29.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 
(2) Law Library Fund - $21.00 

 
3. SCHEDULE 3: $89.00 to be divided as follows: 

 
a. $22.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and deposited as follows: 

(1) Court Automation Fund - $10.00 



5 
 

(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $10.00 
(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $2.00 

 
b. $11.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) Access to Justice Fund - $2.00 
(2) Supreme Court Special Purposes Fund - $9.00 

 
c. $56.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $28.00 
(2) C.A.S.A. – $0.00 
(3) Court Security Fund - $10.00 
(4) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 
(5) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $10.00 

 
d. $29.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 
(2) Law Library Fund - $21.00 

 
4. SCHEDULE 4: $0.00 

 
C. The fees for filing an appearance in a civil action shall be as set forth in the schedules 

below in accordance with case categories established by the Illinois Supreme Court: 
 
1. SCHEDULE 1: $189.00 to be divided as follows: 

 
a. $45.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and distributed as 

follows: 
(1) Court Automation Fund - $20.00 
(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $20.00 
(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $5.00 

 
b. $19.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) Mandatory Arbitration Fund - $8.00 
(2) Access to Justice Fund - $2.00 
(3) Supreme Court Special Purposes Fund - $9.00 

 
c. $125.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $61.00 
(2) C.A.S.A. – $3.00 
(3) Court Security Fund - $36.00 
(4) Neutral Site Exchange - $12.00 
(5) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $13.00 

 
d. $29.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 
(2) Law Library Fund - $21.00 



6 
 

 
 
 
 

3. SCHEDULE 2: $109.00 to be divided as follows: 
 
a. $10.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and distributed as 

follows: 
(1) Court Automation Fund - $5.00 
(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $5.00 
(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $0.00 

 
b. $9.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) Supreme Court Special Purposes Fund - $9.00 
 

c. $90.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as follows: 
(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $40.00 
(2) C.A.S.A. – $3.00 
(3) Court Security Fund - $25.00 
(4) Neutral Site Exchange - $12.00 
(5) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $10.00 

 
d. $29.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) Neutral Site Exchange - $8.00 
(2) Law Library Fund - $21.00 

 
D. The fees for filing a counterclaim or third party complaint in a civil action shall be as 

set forth in the schedules below in accordance with case categories established by the 
Illinois Supreme Court: 
 
1. SCHEDULE 1: $125.00 to be divided as follows: 

 
a. $125.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and deposited as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $121.00 
(2) Court Security Fund - $4.00 

 
2. SCHEDULE 2: $155.00 to be divided as follows: 

 
a. $35.00 to be retained by the Clerk of the Circuit Court and deposited as follows: 

(1) Court Automation Fund - $15.00 
(2) Court Document Storage Fund - $15.00 
(3) Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund - $5.00 

 
b. $10.00 to be remitted to the State Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) Mandatory Arbitration Fund - $8.00 
(2) Access to Justice Fund - $2.00 



7 
 

 
c. $110.00 to be remitted to the County Treasurer and distributed as follows: 

(1) General Fund (Circuit Clerk) - $92.00 
(2) Court Security Fund - $15.00 
(3) Children’s Waiting Room Fund - $3.00 

 
E. Except as otherwise specifically provided, the following miscellaneous fees are to be 

deposited in the County General Fund to be used for purposes related to the operation 
of the court system in the County: 
 
1. Alias summons or citation:     $5.00 

 
2. Jury services:       $212.50 

 
3. Change of venue:      $40.00 

 
4. Petition to vacate or modify: 

a. If filed within 30 days:    $50.00 
b. If filed after 30 days:    $75.00 
c. Notice sent to Secretary of State:   $40.00 

 
5. Appeals preparation: 

a. If record is 100 pages or less:   $50.00 
b. If record is between 100 and 200 pages:  $100.00 
c. If record is 200 pages or more:   Add’l fee of $0.25 per page 

 
6. Garnishment, wage deduction, and citation proceedings: 

a. Amount in controversy $1,000 or less:  $15.00 
b. Amount in controversy greater than $1,000   

and not more than $5,000:     $30.00 
c. Amount in controversy greater than $5,000: $50.00 

 
7. Collections: 

a. All collections (except State and County and maintenance and child support 
cases):  2.5% of the amount collected and turned over 

b. In child support and maintenance cases: $36 annually to be deposited in the 
Child Support Maintenance Fund 

c. Certifications to Secretary of State pursuant to Section 7-703 of the Family 
Financial Responsibility Law: $5.00 

d. In proceedings to foreclose a delinquent real estate tax lien the State’s Attorney 
shall receive a fee of 10% of the total amount realized from the sale of real 
estate sold in the proceedings 

 
8. Mailing: $10.00 plus the cost of postage 

 
9. For each certified copy of a judgment, following the first copy: $10.00 

 



8 
 

10. Certification, authentication, and reproduction: 
a. Each certification or authentication for taking acknowledgement of a deed or 

other instrument in writing with the seal of office: $6.00 
b. Reproduction of any document contained in the Clerk’s files: 

(1) $2.00 for the first page 
(2) $0.50 per page for the next 19 pages 
(3) $0.25 per page for all additional pages 

 
11. For each record search, within a division or municipal district: $6.00 for each year 

searched 
 

12. For each page of hard copy print output, when case records are maintained on an 
automated medium: $6.00 

 
13. Performing a marriage in court: $10.00 
 
14. For filing each deed of voluntary assignment: $20.00; for recording a deed of 

voluntary assignment: $0.50 for each 100 words 
 
15. Expungement petition: $60.00 and an additional fee of $4.00 for each certified copy 

of an order to expunge arrest records 
 

16. Probate filings: 
a. For each account (other than one final account) filed in the estate of a decedent 

or ward: $25.00 
b. Filing a claim: 

(1) Amount claimed greater than $150 and not more than $500: $25.00 
(2) Amount claimed greater than $500 and not more than $10,000: $40.00 
(3) Amount claimed greater than $10,000: $60.00 

c. For filing a claim, petition, or supplemental proceeding based upon an action 
seeking equitable relief: $60.00 

d. For a jury demand: $137.50 
e. For each certified copy of letters of office, of court orders or other certifications: 

$2.00 per page 
f. For each exemplification: $2.00 plus the fee for certification 

 
17. For correction of the case number, case title, or attorney computer identification 

number, if required by rule of court, on any document filed in the Clerk’s Office: 
$25.00 
 

F. Unpaid Fees. 
 
1. Unless a court ordered payment schedule is implemented or the fee requirements 

of this Section are waived by court order, the Clerk is authorized to add to any 
unpaid fees and costs a delinquency amount equal to 15% of the unpaid fees that 
remain unpaid after 90 days.   
 



9 
 

2. Delinquency amounts collected pursuant to this provision shall be deposited into 
the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund to defray additional 
administrative costs incurred by the Clerk in collecting unpaid fees and costs. 

 
Sec. 34 – 3.  Criminal Assessments. 

A. Assessments shall be imposed in criminal, traffic, conservation and non-traffic matters 
in accordance with the schedules set forth in the Criminal and Traffic Assessment Act, 
705 ILCS 135/1-5 et seq., and shall be distributed as set forth herein.  
 

B. Schedules: 
 
1. SCHEDULE 1: Generic Felony Offenses 

 
a. The Clerk shall collect $549.00 and remit as follows: 

 
(1) $354.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $255.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $185.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 
iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(e) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 
(f) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 
(g) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 
(h) $20.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 
(i) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 
(2) $195.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
2. SCHEDULE 2: Felony DUI Offenses 

 
a. The Clerk shall collect $1,709.00 and remit as follows: 

 
(1) $399.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 



10 
 

(d) $300.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 
i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $230.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 
iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 
iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(e) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 
(f) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 
(g) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 
(h) $20.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 
(i) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 
(2) $1,110.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
(3) $200.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

3. SCHEDULE 3: Felony Drug Offenses 
 

a. The Clerk shall collect $2,215.00 and remit as follows: 
 
(1) $354.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $255.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $185.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 
iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(e) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 
(f) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 
(g) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 
(h) $20.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 
(i) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 
(2) $1,861.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
4. SCHEDULE 4: Felony Sex Offenses 

 
a. The Clerk shall collect $1,314.00 and remit as follows: 

 
(1) $354.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 



11 
 

(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $255.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $185.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 
iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(e) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 
(f) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 
(g) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 
(h) $20.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 
(i) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 
(2) $960.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
5. SCHEDULE 5: Generic Misdemeanor Offenses 

 
a. The Clerk shall collect $439.00 and remit as follows: 

 
(1) $282.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 
(e) $185.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $115.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 
iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(f) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 
(g) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 
(h) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 
(i) $10.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 
(j) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 
(2) $155.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
(3) $2.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

6. SCHEDULE 6: Misdemeanor DUI Offenses 



12 
 

 
a. The Clerk shall collect $1,381.00 and remit as follows: 

 
(1) $322.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 
(e) $225.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $155.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 
iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(f) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 
(g) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 
(h) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 
(i) $10.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 
(j) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 
(2) $707.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
(3) $352.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

7. SCHEDULE 7: Misdemeanor Drug Offenses 
 

a. The Clerk shall collect $905.00 and remit as follows: 
 
(1) $282.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 
(e) $185.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $115.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 
iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(f) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 
(g) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 
(h) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 



13 
 

(i) $10.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 
(j) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 
(2) $621.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
(3) $2.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

8. SCHEDULE 8: Misdemeanor Sex Offenses 
 

a. The Clerk shall collect $1,184.00 and remit as follows: 
 
(1) $282.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 
(e) $185.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $115.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 
iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

(f) $10.00 to the Child Advocacy Center Fund 
(g) $2.00 to the State’s Attorney Records Automation Fund 
(h) $2.00 to the Public Defender Records Automation Fund 
(i) $10.00 to the County Jail Medical Costs Fund 
(j) $20.00 to the Probation and Court Services Fund 

 
(2) $900.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
(3) $2.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

9. SCHEDULE 9: Major Traffic Offenses 
 

a. The Clerk shall collect $325.00 and remit as follows: 
 
(1) $203.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 



14 
 

(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 
(e) $150.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $80.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $5.00 
iv. Specialty Courts: $15.00 

 
(2) $97.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
(3) $25.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

10. SCHEDULE 10: Minor Traffic Offenses 
 

a. The Clerk shall collect $226.00 and remit as follows: 
 
(1) $168.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 
(e) $115.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $60.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $50.00 

iii. Children’s Waiting Room Fund: $2.00 
iv. Specialty Courts: $3.00 

 
(2) $46.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
(3) $12.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

11. SCHEDULE 10.5: Truck Weight and Load Offenses 
 

a. The Clerk shall collect $260.00 and remit as follows: 
 
(1) $168.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 



15 
 

(e) $115.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 
i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $105.00 

ii. Court Security Fund: $10.00 
 

(2) $92.00 to the State Treasurer 
 

12. SCHEDULE 11: Conservation Offenses 
 

a. The Clerk shall collect $195.00 and remit as follows: 
 
(1) $168.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 
(e) $115.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $105.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $10.00 

 
(2) $25.00 to the State Treasurer 

 
(3) $2.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
 

13. SCHEDULE 12: Dispositions under Supreme Court Rule 529 (No Court 
Appearance Required Traffic Offenses) 

 
a. The Clerk shall collect $164.00 and remit as follows: 

 
(1) $100.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as 

follows: 
 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 
(e) $47.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $37.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $10.00 

 
(2) $14.00 to the State Treasurer 

 



16 
 

(3) $50.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 
agency 

 
14. SCHEDULE 13: Petty Offense, Business Offense, or Non-Traffic Ordinance 

Violation 
 

a. The Clerk shall collect $100.00 and remit as follows: 
 
(1) $75.00 to the County Treasurer who shall deposit the money as follows: 

 
(a) $20.00 to the Court Automation Fund 
(b) $20.00 to the Court Document Storage Fund 
(c) $5.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative 

Fund 
(d) $8.00 to the Circuit Court Clerk Electronic Citation Fund 
(e) $22.00 to the County General Fund to be distributed as follows: 

i. General Fund (Circuit Clerk): $12.00 
ii. Court Security Fund: $10.00 

 
(2) $25.00 to the treasurer of the unit of local government of the arresting 

agency 
  

C. Unpaid Assessments. 
 
1. Unless a court ordered payment schedule is implemented or the assessment 

requirements of this Section are waived by court order, the Clerk is authorized to 
add to any unpaid assessments a delinquency amount equal to 15% of the unpaid 
assessments that remain unpaid after 90 days.   
 

2. Delinquency amounts collected pursuant to this provision shall be deposited into 
the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund to defray additional 
administrative costs incurred by the Clerk in collecting unpaid assessments. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be effective on July 1, 2019 

August 23, 2021. 
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 

and directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Ordinance to the Clerk of the Circuit 
Court, the Chief Judge of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, and the Winnebago County Bar 
Association. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

  



17 
 

AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
 

______________________________ __________________________________  
Jaime Salgado, Chairman      Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
 
______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Burt Gerl Jean Crosby     Burt Gerl Jean Crosby    
   
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman     Joe Hoffman 
 
 
______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz     Steve Schultz 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________ 
Dave Boomer John Butitta     Dave Boomer John Butitta 
 
 
______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Dave Fiduccia Paul Arena     Dave Fiduccia Paul Arena 
 
 
______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald    Keith McDonald 
 
       
 APPROVED this _____ day of __________________________, 2019 2021 by the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Frank Haney Joseph V.Chiarelli 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 



18 
 

Ayes: ______  Nays: ______  Absent: ____ 



 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



                   COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
          September 30, 2021 

 
RESOLUTION  

OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2021 CR _______ 

 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD TO 
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH WILLIAM HINTZ, WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

CORONER FOR VOLUNTARY PAID ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE 
 

WHEREAS, William Hintz (Hintz) was elected as the Winnebago County Coroner in 2016 
and was re-elected in 2020; and  
 

WHEREAS, Hintz has six pending criminal cases from 2020-2021 the allegations of 
which are related to his duties as Winnebago County Coroner; and 

WHEREAS, Hintz is presumed innocent of those charges unless and until proven guilty 
at trial;  

WHEREAS, on September 9, 2021, the Winnebago County Board passed a resolution 
requesting the resignation of Hintz or in the alternative, that Hintz agree to be placed on  
administrative leave until all criminal charges are resolved; and  

WHEREAS, upon the effective date of the attached Agreement, Hintz has agreed to 
voluntarily go on paid administrative leave until all his criminal charges are resolved, subject to 
certain terms and conditions; and 

WHEREAS, all Parties agree that Hintz’s voluntary placement on paid administrative 
leave would best serve the interests of the residents and taxpayers of Winnebago County, Illinois.  

WHEREAS, Hintz shall remain the elected Coroner of Winnebago County, Illinois.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized and directed to 
execute the Agreement between the Winnebago County Board, Joseph Chiarelli, County Board 
Chairman and William Hintz, in substantially the same form as contained in Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 



The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _________________, 2021. 

 

                      _______________________________________  
                                                                                                     Joseph Chiarelli 

          Chairman of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

______________________________   
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



 

AGREEMENT  

This Agreement (Agreement) made and entered into as of September ____, 2021, by and 

between the Winnebago County Board, Joseph Chiarelli, County Board Chairman and William 

Hintz, Winnebago County Coroner (Hintz).  

The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions of Hintz’s voluntary paid 

administrative leave as Winnebago County Coroner. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Hintz was elected as the Winnebago County Coroner in 2016 and was re-elected in 

2020; and  

WHEREAS, Hintz has six pending criminal cases from 2020-2021 the allegations of which are 

related to his duties as Winnebago County Coroner; and 

WHEREAS, Hintz is presumed innocent of those charges unless and until proven guilty at trial;  

WHEREAS, on September 9, 2021, the Winnebago County Board passed a resolution requesting 

the resignation of Hintz or in the alternative, that Hintz agree to be placed on  administrative 

leave until all criminal charges are resolved; and  

WHEREAS, upon the effective date of this Agreement, Hintz has agreed to voluntarily go on 

paid administrative leave until all his criminal charges are resolved, subject to certain terms and 

conditions; and 

WHEREAS, all Parties agree that Hintz’s voluntary placement on paid administrative leave 

would best serve the interests of the residents and taxpayers of Winnebago County, Illinois.  

WHEREAS, Hintz shall remain the elected Coroner of Winnebago County, Illinois.  

 Now, therefore, in consideration of the above recitals, and the mutual terms and 

conditions contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. Incorporation of Recitals 

The matters recited above are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this 

Agreement. 

II. Conditions of Administrative Leave 

a. Hintz shall: 

i. Receive his full salary and benefits;  

ii. Return his assigned Winnebago County owned vehicle, keys, ID badge, 

laptop, cell phone and any other county-issued property. The Parties shall 

make arrangements for retrieval of all county issued property.  

iii. Be prohibited from coming to the Coroner’s office, performing any work 

related to duties as Coroner or accessing work email or computer systems; 



 

iv. Communicate directly with Debbie Crozier, Director of Winnebago 

County Human Resources Department, if he has any questions related to 

the operations of the Coroner’s office or other work related issues.  

 

III. Effective date and Termination 

a. The effective date of the administrative leave shall be September 23, 2021.  

b. This Agreement will be presented to the Winnebago County Board for 

consideration and approval, but the effective date of the Agreement will be as 

provided herein.  

c. This Agreement shall terminate upon the resolution of all pending criminal cases 

involving Hintz. Specifically, “resolution” means: (i) a plea of guilty as to one or 

more pending charges, or (ii) after trial, a conviction as to one or more pending 

charges, or (iii) after trial, a finding of not guilty as to all pending charges.  

 

IV. Legal Representation  

a. The Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office accepts Attorney Mark Byrd’s 

representation of Hintz on this limited basis to effect the intent and purpose of this 

Agreement.  

 

V. Indemnification 

a. In consideration of Hintz’ continued receipt of County benefits, including but not 

limited to his salary, Hintz waives any and all claims, actions, suits, debts, 

demands, sums of money, compensation, controversies, agreements, promises, 

damages, costs of any nature whatsoever, and liabilities of any kind or character 

whatsoever, known or unknown (hereinafter collectively referred to as “claims”) 

against Winnebago County, the Winnebago County Board and Joseph Chiarelli, 

County Board Chairman  arising out of or connected with, directly or indirectly, 

to his position as Coroner and shall not bring any actions seeking reinstatement of 

his duties or make any claims that he has been deprived of his position as Coroner 

of Winnebago County, Illinois. County waives any right to seek repayment of 

Hintz’ County benefits, including salary that may arise out of said voluntary paid 

administrative leave. However, said County waiver has no effect on any and all 

criminal indictments and/or criminal charges filed against Hintz including but not 

limited to any court ordered restitution. 

 

VI. Entire Agreement 

a. This Agreement (including each Exhibit attached hereto, which is hereby 

incorporated herein by reference) constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties hereto and it supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and discussions 

between the parties relative to the subject matter hereof.   

 

 



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties to this Agreement have hereunto set their hands 

the day and year first above written. 

 

________________________________  _______________________________ 

Joseph Chiarelli      William Hintz 

Chairman of the County Board of the   Winnebago County Coroner  

County of Winnebago, Illinois 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: September 30, 2021 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Updated Inspection Plan for Byron Station Units 1 and 2 (05000454/2021005 and 

05000455/2021005) 
 
b. Exelon Generation Company, LLC – Request for Additional Information Regarding 

License Transfer Application (EPID L-2021-LLM-0000) 
 

c. Federal Register / Vol. 86, No. 170/Tuesday, September 7, 2021 / Notices 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from ComEd a notification regarding their intent to 
perform vegetation management activities on distribution circuits in our area within 
the next few months. 

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 

the following: 
 

a. Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste.  Site Identification: Rockford 
Airport #2 (Landfill No. 2) Description of Project: Significant Permit Modification 
for an Alternate Source Demonstration at Landfill No. 2 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

b. Public Notice regarding National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System.  
 

4. County Clerk Gummow received from Sue Goral, Winnebago County Treasurer the 
Monthly Report as of August, 2021 Bank Balances. 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment 


	Revised Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, Public Participation & Proclamations
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation (Wisocki v. Winnebago County)
	Resolution for Gigabit to Desktop Project Tech Engineering
	Resolution Awarding Purchase of Police Patrol Vehicles & Related Equipment
	Resolution Awarding Bid for Exterior Maintenance Repair Work for Veterans Memorial Hall
	Approval of Budget Ordinance Coroner for Fiscal Year 2022
	Approval of Budget Ordinance General Fund Revenue for Fiscal Year 2022
	Approval of Budget Ordinance Memorial Hall for Fiscar Year 2022
	Approval of Budget Ordinance for Point Click Care for Fiscal Year 2022
	Approval of Budget Ordinance States Attorney for Fiscal Year 2022
	Approval of Budget Ordinance Motor Fuel Tax & Federal Aid Match Funds
	Zoning Committee
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Establishing County Holiday Schedule for 2022
	Resolution for Emergency Purchase of Food Steamer at RBNH
	Resolution Awarding Bid for Access & Accessibility Upgrades
	Public Works Committee
	(21-030) Resolution
	(21-031) Resolution
	(21-032) Resolution
	(21-033) Resolution
	(21-034) Resolution
	Unfinished Business
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance to Opt-out of Preferential Assessment
	Budget Amendment Sheriff's Office
	Annual Appropriation Ordinance
	Ordinance Establishing Civil Fees, Criminal, & Traffic Assessments
	Appointments
	New Business
	Resolution Authorizing Chairman of Cty. Board to Execute Agreement with Willian Hintz
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



